
 

- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 

MONDAY 16TH SEPTEMBER 2013 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 

 

MEMBERS: Councillors P. Lammas (Chairman), R. J. Laight (Vice-Chairman), 
C. J. Bloore, B. T. Cooper, R. L. Dent, K. A. Grant-Pearce, 
J. M. L. A. Griffiths, H. J. Jones, L. C. R. Mallett, S. P. Shannon, 
C. J. Spencer, C. J. Tidmarsh and L. J. Turner 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. To receive Apologies for Absence and notification of Substitutes  
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Arrangements  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board held on 15th July 2013 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

4. Update on the Bromsgrove Town Centre Regeneration and Public Realm 
Improvements - Presentation  
 

5. Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal - Car Parking Charges (Pages 7 - 16) 
 

6. Making Experiences Count Quarter 1 Report (Pages 17 - 38) 
 

7. Quarter 1 Finance Monitoring Report (Pages 39 - 58) 
 

8. Quarter 4 Sickness Absence and Performance Health Report (Pages 59 - 62) 
 

9. Air Quality Task Group Draft Final Report (Pages 63 - 106) 
 

10. Artrix Outreach Work Task Group Report (Pages 107 - 110) 
(Appendix 1 – Overview & Scrutiny Exercise Scoping Checklist TO FOLLOW) 



 

- 2 - 

  
11. WRS Joint Scrutiny Exercise - Verbal Update  

 
12. Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Board - Verbal Update  

 
13. Cabinet Work Programme 1st October to 31st January 2014 (Pages 111 - 

116) 
 

14. Action List (Pages 117 - 120) 
 

15. Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme (Pages 121 - 124) 
 

16. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
4th September 2013 
 



 

- 3 - 

 

 

 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

� You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board 
meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business 
would disclose confidential or “exempt” information. 

� You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

� You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

� You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

� An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

� A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

� You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

� Meeting Agendas 
� Meeting Minutes 
� The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 



 

- 4 - 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 

 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 

MONDAY, 15TH JULY 2013 AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors P. Lammas (Chairman), R. J. Laight (Vice-Chairman), 
S. J. Dudley, J. M. L. A. Griffiths, L. C. R. Mallett (Present from Minute No. 
1/13 to Minute No. 12/13), J. A. Ruck, C. R. Scurrell (Substituting for R. L. 
Dent)), R. J. Shannon (Substituting for C. J. Bloore), S. P. Shannon, 
L. J. Turner and P. J. Whittaker 
 

 Observers: Councillor M. A. Bullivant and Councillor M. A. Sherrey 

  

 Officers: Ms. J. Pickering, Ms. A. De Warr, Ms. L. Jones and 
Ms. A. Scarce 
 

 
 

1/13 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
Nominations for Chairman were received in respect of Councillors P. Lammas 
and L. C. R. Mallett. 
 

RESOLVED that Councillor P. Lammas be elected as Chairman for the 
ensuing municipal year. 
 

2/13 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN  
 
Nominations for Vice Chairman were received in respect of Councillors R. J. 
Laight and L. C. R. Mallett. 
 

RESOLVED that Councillor R. J. Laight be elected as Vice Chairman for the 
ensuing municipal year. 
 

3/13 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C. J. Bloore, B. T. 
Cooper, R. L. Dent and C. J. Spencer. 
 

4/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS  
 
Councillor J. M. L. A. Griffiths declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest as a 
Member of Bromsgrove Arts Centre Trust in respect of item No. 12.  As such 
Councillor Griffiths withdrew from the meeting and was not present and took 
no part in its consideration and voting thereon. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
15th July 2013 

 

 
5/13 MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Board meeting held on 22nd April 
2013 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

6/13 MAKING EXPERIENCES COUNT QUARTER 4 REPORT  
 
The Head of Customer Services introduced the report and highlighted the 
following points: 
 

• The number of days taken to respond to complaints and comparable 
data for the previous year and how the slight slippage in this was being 
addressed. 

• Outstanding issues being dealt with by the Ombudsman (there had 
been a total of 6 over the year, which compared relatively well against 
other authorities). 

• A slight decrease in the number of complaints in respect of refuse and 
recycling due to the ongoing trial of a new system where the 
operational staff were dealing directly with enquiries.   

• The downward trend in customer contact and the increase in payments 
online and by phone. 

• The Every Customer, Every Time – Everybody Matters Action Plan.  
Members were informed that there had been considerable progress 
with much of the action plan having been completed. 

• The review of the process and the current trial to cut out steps in the 
complaints system by Managers discussing directly with complainants 
issues in order to establish the real problem at an earlier stage and how 
the customer would like it to be resolved. 

 
Members discussed the use of the free press and the Council’s web pages to 
advertise such things as the Christmas refuse collections and the Head of 
Customer Services agreed to report Members concerns that not everyone had 
access to either of these forms of advertisement to the relevant Head of 
Service.. 
 
The Head of Customer Services confirmed that compliments and complaints 
in respect of Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) were not included 
within this report and were reported on an annual basis to the Worcestershire 
Shared Services Joint Committee.  Officers informed Members that this was 
an area which would be considered under the WRS Joint Scrutiny Exercise. 
 
The Board discussed the following areas in detail: 
 

• The use of telephone answer machines and out of date messages on 
these.  (New guidance was being developed in respect of this, which 
would apply to all staff.) 

• The importance of the Board receiving the report on a regular basis, 
despite it being available through the Orb and in the Members’ Room. 

Page 2



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
15th July 2013 

 

• The publics interest in the information provided and its availability on 
the Council website via the Customer Service pages. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a)   that the report be noted; and 
(b)   that the Overview & Scrutiny Board continue to receive the report. 
 

7/13 YOUTH PROVISIONAL TASK GROUP DRAFT FINAL REPORT  
 
The Chairman of the Task Group introduced the report and informed Members 
that the Task Group had taken the opportunity to visit youth groups throughout 
the district in order to get a better understanding of what was available and to 
hear the views, first hand, of the young people. 
 
The Board discussed the inclusion of a further recommendation which would 
enable the Council to take responsibility for youth provision following the 
changes which had taken place at Worcestershire County Council (WCC) and 
the introduction of the Positive Activities Scheme.  The Chairman of the Task 
Group explained that within the terms of reference of the Task Group the aim 
had been to ascertain what was currently available, not only through the 
Scheme but also through the voluntary sector or privately run activities.   The 
Task Group acknowledged that cutbacks had been made at all levels, 
including WCC, but it had been pleasantly surprised by the number of 
activities which were still available and the innovative way in which these were 
carried out.  Although it appeared that there was a reduction in the number of 
paid youth workers, a great deal of the activities were being provided by 
volunteers, which in many cases had shown a great community spirit and the 
Task Group wished to highlight this good work. 
 
Members discussed each recommendation and raised concerns over the 
changes which had taken place at the Ryland Centre, requesting that 
recommendation 3 be amended to highlight the need for the funding from 
Sandwell Leisure Trust to be allocated to activities within the Bromsgrove 
Town Centre area.  Recommendation 10 was discussed in detail as Members 
were concerned that there was clearly a specific need for youth provision for 
the disaffected young people and those not in education, employment or 
training within the District and it was this group in particularly that would 
benefit greatly from that provision. 
 
The Board also discussed the information which had been provided by 
Members and the Chairman of the Task Group confirmed that not all Members 
had responded, hence recommendation 4.  The Board asked that the 
information provided be made available in some way on the Council’s website.  
Officers explained that this had been discussed with the Communications 
Manager who had intimated that the difficulty with such information was that it 
quickly became out of date and was therefore difficult to maintain.  However, 
officers agreed to discuss this further with the Communications Manager with 
the possibility of attaching some sort of disclaimer to the document. 
 

Page 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
15th July 2013 

 

The Chairman of the Task Group gave her thanks to both Members and 
Officers for the work carried out in bringing the report to the Board. 
 
RESOLVED that the Youth Provision Task Group Report and 
Recommendations be submitted to Cabinet for approval subject to the 
amendment of recommendation 3 as detailed in the preamble above. 
 

8/13 QUARTER 4 SICKNESS ABSENCE PERFORMANCE AND HEALTH 

REPORT  
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Resources informed Members that a 
written report for Quarter 4 Sickness Absence Performance and Health would 
be available at the meeting to be held on 16th September 2013 and that the 
Board would be given the opportunity at that meeting to discuss how it would 
like to receive the sickness performance and absence data in future. 
 

9/13 THE LIVING WAGE REPORT - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Resources informed Members that this 
was the third report received by the Board and that it contained information on 
the challenges and impact of ensuring that the Living Wage was paid to 
contractors of the Council.  The report also highlighted issues which could 
have an impact on the implementation and monitoring the payment of the 
Living Wage going forward.  Members discussed the following areas in detail: 
 

• Clarification as to members of staff receiving the Living Wage. 

• the mechanism which could be put in place to encourage contractors to 
pay the Living Wage. 

• any finance cost to the Council in monitoring contactors. 

• What duty, if any, the Council had to ensure it's contractors paid the 
Living Wage. 

 
After further discussion it was 
 
RESOLVED that no further action be taken in respect of the Living Wage. 
 

10/13 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13  
 
The Board considered the Draft Annual Report and was reminded that 
previous reports had been submitted to Council for information. 
 
RESOLVED that the Overview & Scrutiny Board Annual Report 2012-13 be 
submitted to the Council meeting to be held on 25th September 2013 for 
information. 
 

11/13 APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE JOINT WORCESTERSHIRE 
REGULATORY SERVICES TASK GROUP  
 
The Board was reminded that at the meeting held on 26th March 2013 it had 
agreed the terms of reference for the Joint Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services Task Group, subject to the appointment of representatives.  The 

Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
15th July 2013 

 

nominated representatives should include either the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman together with a substitute member.  Following discussion it was 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor P. Lammas be lead representative and Councillor 
R. J. Laight be substitute representative. 
 

12/13 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TOPIC PROPOSAL - OUTREACH 

PROVISION AT THE ARTRIX ARTS CENTRE  
 
Members discussed the proposal which had been put forward by Councillor P. 
McDonald and agreed that this was a valid topic which covered a specific 
service.  The Board was informed that during the course of the Youth 
Provision Task Group's investigations the Outreach Co-ordinator had been 
interviewed and had provided information on the work which was carried out 
and details of funding streams.  The Group had also discussed the work of the 
Outreach Co-ordinator with the Artistic Director whilst visiting the Centre.  
Members discussed the possibility of setting up a task group and Officers 
advised that capacity for this would be available from September, upon 
completion of the Air Quality Task Group.  After further discussion is was 
 
RESOLVED that the topic be included within the work programme and a task 
group established with Councillor S. P. Shannon as Chairman. 
 

13/13 AIR QUALITY TASK GROUP  
 
The Chairman of the Task Group was invited to provide Members with an 
update of the work of the Task Group. 
 
The Chairman informed Members that the subject of air quality was 
particularly topical at the moment as a significant amount of press coverage 
had been received in respect of both the UK's continued breach of air pollutant 
levels (it was not anticipated to reach acceptable levels for a number of years) 
and recent medical evidence which linked poor air quality to heart failure and 
shortening of life.   
 
The Group had held four meetings since the last update and witnesses had 
included representatives from Worcestershire Regulatory Services, the Hagley 
Parish Air Quality Group and the Public Health Consultant from 
Worcestershire County Council.  The Task Group had also sent a response to 
the Worcestershire Regulatory Services Air Quality Action Plan consultation.  
A further meeting of the Task Group would take place on 18th July which 
would be attended by the Strategic Planning Manager and the Network 
Control Manager from Worcestershire County Council. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that the Task Group remained on schedule to bring 
its final report before the Board at its meeting to be held on 16th September 
2013. 

Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
15th July 2013 

 

 
14/13 WORCESTERSHIRE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 
As Councillor Cooper had given his apologies for this evening's meeting a 
written update had been received which would be provided to all Members by 
email.  Officers confirmed that the main item on the agenda for the meeting on 
25th June 2013 of the Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (HOSC) had been an update on the state of the Acute Hospitals 
reconfiguration and that the Committee had been told that the Joint Service 
Review was now completed and that two broad options were left for 
consideration.  
 

15/13 CABINET WORK PROGRAMME 1ST AUGUST TO 30TH NOVEMBER 2013  
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Resources explained to the Board that 
this was an opportunity to pre scrutinise any appropriate items from the 
Cabinet Work Programme if it so wished.  The Members discussed the Capital 
Programme in respect of the Bromsgrove Town Centre, Public Realm 
Improvements and although this was expected to go to Cabinet on 4th 
September, which would not allow the Board the opportunity to pre-scrutinise 
it, Members were in agreement that it would be useful to receive an update on 
the current position. 
 
RESOLVED that the Senior Project Manager give a presentation to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Board on the Bromsgrove Town Centre, Public Realm 
Improvements at the meeting to be held on 16th September 2013. 
 

16/13 ACTION LIST  
 
Members noted the outstanding actions and that where appropriate further 
information would be provided as soon as possible. 
 

17/13 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Board considered the Work Programme and discussed the length of both 
this evening's meeting and the meeting to be held on 16th September, 
following the addition of 2 items as detailed in the preamble above and 
considered the option of holding a further meeting in September to allow the 
Board to debate the items in more detail.  Officers informed Members that the 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services Joint Scrutiny verbal update would not be 
a significant item, as it was unlikely that the initial meeting would be set up 
prior to this.  The option was also available to move the Planning Policy Task 
Group 12 month review to the October meeting.  After further discussion it was 
 
RESOLVED that the Work Programme be noted subject to the amendments 
noted above. 
 

The meeting closed at 8.10 p.m. 
 

 
Chairman 

Page 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 16th September 2013 

 
 
SCRUTINY INVESTIGATION PROPOSAL 
  

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Mike Webb 

Portfolio Holder Consulted  No 

Relevant Head of Service for 
Overview and Scrutiny 

Claire Felton – Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services 

Wards Affected All wards 

Ward Councillor Consulted No – not at this stage 

Non-Key Decision  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 An Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal Form relating to car parking 

charges has been completed by a member of the public, Mr. C. W. 
Bateman, on behalf of the Bromsgrove Forum for Older People and is 
submitted for consideration by the Board. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That the Board considers the completed proposal form (at Appendix 1) 

and agrees to one of the following: 
 
(a) that further information be requested from a relevant source 

before deciding whether or not further investigation is required;  
(b) that the topic is included on the work programme for further 

investigation at a future date; 
(c) that the topic is included on the work programme and a Task 

Group is established to undertake a more in-depth investigation, 
appoint a Chairman for the Task Group and set a time scale for 
completion of the investigation;  or 

(d) take no further action. 
  
 

3. KEY ISSUES 
 
 Financial Implications    

 
3.1 There are no financial implications directly relating to this report, 

however, if the proposal is accepted, any implications would be 
considered as part of the subsequent investigation undertaken. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2 There are no legal implications directly relating to this report, however, 
if the proposal is accepted, any implications would be considered as 
part of the subsequent investigation undertaken. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 16th September 2013 

 
 

 Service/Operation Implications 
 
3.3 An Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal Form relating to car parking 

charges has been completed by a member of the public, Mr. C. W. 
Bateman on behalf of the Bromsgrove Forum for Older People. 

 
3.4 If the Board decides that it does wish to investigate this topic further, it 

then needs to decide whether it is appropriate for the Board itself to 
undertake the investigation or whether a more in-depth investigation is 
required and a task group established. 

 
3.5 Another option is for the Board to request further information on the 

topic from a relevant source to assist Members in deciding whether an 
investigation is required. 

 
3.6 Alternatively, the Board could decide that it is not a topic it wishes to 
 investigate, in which case no further action would be required.    
 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.7 N/A 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 N/A 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
 Appendix 1 – Overview and Scrutiny Proposal Form 
 Appendix 2 – Supporting Evidence   
   
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 
 

7. KEY 
 
None 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Amanda Scarce – Democratic Services Officer 
E Mail: a.scarce@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: 01527 881443 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Altrincham Car Park usage figures

Tickets 1hr 2hr 3hr 4hr Day

May-11 11045 4926 683 993 549 3894

Jun-11 11202 4806 591 979 555 4271

Jul-11 15114 5495 3470 1917 652 3580

Aug-11 33704 10481 12337 5784 1386 3716

Sep-11 35699 11957 12541 5457 1384 4360

Oct-11 38074 12547 13280 5873 1568 4806

Nov-11 33589 11104 11375 4996 1265 4849

Dec-11 38108 11294 13072 7090 1776 4876

Jan-12 40260 12413 14524 6861 1561 4901

Feb-12 35392 10855 12673 5921 1474 4469

Mar-12 35678 10738 12701 5647 1456 5136

Apr-12 33636 10503 11889 5793 1282 4169

May-12 33241 10767 11927 4888 1236 4423

Jun-12 30694 10225 11504 4545 1063 3357

Jul-12 35427 11881 12817 5198 1242 4289

Aug-12 34860 11018 12760 5548 1357 4177

Sep-12 33745 11735 12032 4766 1044 4168

Oct-12 38988 13078 14084 5564 1314 4948

Nov-12 38183 12366 13315 5650 1433 5419

Dec-12 37168 11050 13421 6595 1607 4495

Jan-13 35901 11363 13434 5538 1249 4317

Feb-13 33997 10981 12089 5354 1284 4289

Mar-13 35315 12185 12804 4877 1209 4240

1284

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

Tickets

1hr

2hr

3hr

4hr

Day

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

From: C Bateman 

Sent: 24 July 2013 15:44 

To: Amanda Scarce 

Cc: Kevin Dicks 

Subject: Topic Proposal 

 
Hi Amanda, 
Proposal attached, and evidence.  
  
Pasted from Altincham web site. 
Low cost Monday to Saturday rates of 10p for one hour, 30p for two and 70p for three hours'' 
  

Dear Charles, thank you for being patient in waiting for a response, I have attached some 

figures that show the increased sale of pay and display tickets in Altrincham 

Regards 

  

Nicola 

Environment Transport Operations 
Trafford Council 

Kind regards, 

Charlie 

  

Page 13



 

From:  C Bateman 

Sent: 29 July 2013 19:20 

To: Amanda Scarce 

Cc: Kevin Dicks; snowcar111@btinternet.com; mary@hedgehog-art.co.uk 

Subject: Re: Topic Proposal 

 
Hi Amanda, 
The Government support 'high streets' in respect of setting low parking charges and 
removing  petty restrictions. Please add this to our Topic Proposal. (Pasted from the web - 
29th July) 
   

The Government has previously issued guidance to councils encouraging them to attract shoppers by 

setting competitive parking charges and urging them to improve the quality of parking in town centres. 

Tory local government minister Brandon Lewis said: "This Government has scrapped Whitehall rules 

that previously told councils to hike up parking charges, adopt draconian enforcement and impose 

arbitrary limits on off-street parking spaces. 

"Councils now need to play their part in reining back in the overzealous culture of municipal parking 

enforcement. 

"They should adopt a common sense approach. Ministers are considering what further steps can be 

taken to ensure that town hall parking policies and practices support local high streets." 

Kind regards, 

Charlie 

PS. Our request does not include the 15 minute parking on double yellow lines suggested 
by Eric Pickles.    

  

Page 14



From: C.Bateman  

Sent: 08 August 2013 16:22 

To: Amanda Scarce 

Cc: Kevin Dicks 

Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal 

 

Hi Amanda, 

In addition to the Altrincham data please make the board aware of the 

following points. 

Kind regards, 

Charlie 

Car Parking Charges – O&S topic proposal 

•         The surplus from car parking last year (2012/13 ) was just over £500k 
– from an income of just over 1.4 million   

 

•        Motorists have won a landmark judgement after the High Court 

ruled it illegal for a cash-strapped council to hike parking 

charges as a revenue-raising stealth ‘tax’ to subsidise its other 

services. 

 

•        Brandon Lewis, Minister for Local Government, said: ‘This 

Government has been very clear that parking charges are not, 

and should not be, a town hall stealth tax on local residents. We 

have scrapped the Labour Government's guidance which 

pressured councils to hike up parking charges. 

 

•         Indeed, making sure that car parking charges are reasonable is 

an important way in which councils can help support their local 

high streets and local shops.’ 

  

Page 15



From: C.Bateman  

Sent: 09 August 2013 11:25 

To: Amanda Scarce 

Cc: Kevin Dicks; snowcar111@btinternet.com; mary@hedgehog-art.co.uk 

Subject: Re: Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal 

 
Hi Amanda, 
Many thanks, 
  

This is our third request !! We expect some action this time!! 
Regards, 
Charlie 
  
  
  
41/11 SCRUTINY OF ALL BROMSGROVE CAR PARKS (REDUCTION IN 
THE 
NUMBER OF TICKETS SOLD) - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TOPIC 
PROPOSAL REPORT 
The Board considered the Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal put forward 
by a resident, Mr Charles Bateman. As the Board had recently completed a 
Task Group in respect of the Recreation Road South Car Park and in light of 
the findings of that report and the imminent review of the car parking 
operation, it was 
RESOLVED that no further action be taken. 
 
 
97/11 DISCOUNTED PARKING CHARGES - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
TOPIC 
PROPOSAL REPORT 
The Board considered the Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal put forward 
by a resident, Mr. Charles Bateman, in relation to discounted parking charges. 
As the Board had recently completed a Task Group in respect of the 
Recreation Road South Car Park and in light of the agreement at the Cabinet 
meeting held on 22nd February 2012 for a cross party review to be carried out 
in respect of car parking, Members agreed it was not appropriate to 
investigate the issues raised in this Topic Proposal until such time as that 
review had been completed. 
RESOLVED that the Board receive, upon completion, the report on the 
Review of Car Parking before giving further consideration to the Topic 
Proposal in respect of Discounted Parking Charges. 
 

Page 16



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  

BOARD  Date: 16th September 2013 
 

MAKING EXPERIENCES COUNT - QUARTERLY COMPLAINTS REPORT  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Mark Bullivant 
Portfolio Holder Consulted  √ 
Relevant Head of Service Amanda de Warr – Head of Customer 

Services 
Wards Affected All Wards  
Non-Key Decision  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 This report provides the Board with customer feedback data for the first 

quarter of 2013/14 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Board is asked to: 
 
2.1 Note the contents of the report. 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
3.1      This report details the customer feedback received by the authority   

during the 1st quarter of 2013/14, including Local Government 
Ombudsman complaints and the outcomes of customer complaints.    
 

3.2  The report also provides demand data across the main access 
channels. 

 
 Financial Implications 
 
3.3 There are no direct financial implications, although failure to deal 

appropriately with complaints can lead to financial recompense being 
necessary.  

 
 Legal Implications 
 
3.4 There are no specific legal issues arising from this report.  Any legal 

issues arising from complaints are dealt with on a case by case basis. 
 
 Service/Operational Implications  
 
3.5 The Every Customer, Every Time, Customer Experience Strategy was 

launched in March 2011 and sets out our vision for excellent customer 
service provision and improving the customer experience when having 
contact with the Council.  

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  

BOARD  Date: 16th September 2013 
 

 
3.6 As an authority committed to improving customer care customer 

feedback and demand data is used to measure what is happening in 
our systems, and to inform improvements.  
 

3.7 Quarterly reporting is intended to ensure Members of the Council and 
customers are updated in respect of customer feedback, especially 
complaints made in respect of service provision.  

 
3.8 Good customer service has improved value for money by reducing 

failure demand.  Improvements to the way we handle complaints has 
resulted in less officer time spent chasing responses and re-
investigating. 

 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  
 
3.9 It is important to monitor aspects of customer service to ensure that we 

are improving and developing.  Customers need to know that we 
respond properly to complaints and act on the issues raised to reduce 
the possibility of them happening again.  

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 It is important to use the Council’s complaints or compliments to 

measure how well the system is meeting its purpose and to act on 
those complaints to fix the system where it is failing.   

 
5. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 - Quarterly Customer Feedback Report Quarter 1 
2013/14  

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 The details to support the information provided within this report are 
held by Head of Customer Services 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Amanda de Warr 
E Mail: a.dewarr@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881241 

Page 18



 
 

EVERY CUSTOMER, EVERY TIME - 
“Everybody Matters” 

 
 
 

Making Experiences Count  
 Quarterly Customer Service Report  

 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

1
st
 April 2013 – 30

th
 June 2013 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 19



1. Introduction 
 
This report details the customer feedback received by Bromsgrove District Council during the period 
from 1st April 2013 to 30th June 2013.  
 
It also provides information about the customer demand received through the customer service team 
and payment channels.  

 

2. Customer Feedback Analysis 
 

57 complaints were received during this quarter because we did not meet the customer’s 

expectations, or failed to meet our own standards, or the customer was unhappy with an outcome. 
Details of all complaints received can be found at the end of this report in Appendix A.   
 

49 complaints (85%) were answered in 15 working days or less. 8 complaints took longer than 15 

working days to respond to.  
 

We also received 24 compliments.  

 
Complaint figures have more than doubled since last quarter when we received 24 across the 
Council. We can see that the majority of the complaints for this quarter have been triggered by the 
Route Optimisation project for Refuse and Recycling and issues with the telephony service within the 
Revenues team. 
 
The Route Optimisation project has seen a change of collection days for the majority of residents in 
Bromsgrove along with new routes, new team members and new patterns of duty for refuse and 
recycling teams. This has resulted in 19 complaints which is higher than usual. However, with 
approximately thirty nine and a half thousand households to deal with, it is a surprisingly lower figure. 
The crews have been very flexible during this period of change and have gone the extra mile to help 
customers who have been confused by the new collection arrangements. It is expected that 
complaints about collections will continue to rise in the next couple of months as residents get used to 
the change in collection days. 
 
The Revenues team has been experiencing problems with their telephony service which has caused 
calls to go unanswered or to be cut off.  However, a new contact centre module for the Revenues 
team is due to be installed shortly. This should alleviate any of these types of problems and allow 
officers to give a quicker response. 
 

The common themes in the complaints received this quarter were:   

• Automated systems not working properly. 

• Problems getting through on the telephone. 

• Bins not being put back in safe positions. 

• Missed bins. 

• Staff being unfriendly. 

• Not doing what we promised. 

• Brown Bin stickers causing confusion. 

• Not responding to customers calls and queries. 

• Unacceptable delays in taking action. 

• Not keeping customers informed of changes/cancellations of service. 

Page 20



 
Number of complaints by service (detailed) 
 
The following table provides a more detailed breakdown of complaints by service.  
  

 
 
“You said – we listened” – what did we change as a result of complaints? 
 
Some of the changes made as a result of complaints include:- 
 

• Amended Council Tax documents with revised opening hours. 

• Review of the garden waste sticker system underway. 

• Improved template and system for email responses to planning queries. 
 

Number of complaints escalated to Head of Customer Services 
 
There were no complaints escalated to the Head of Customer Services for further investigation or 
action. 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



Time taken to respond to complaints 
 
We aim to respond to customer complaints within 15 working days and 85% of complaints received 
during this quarter were dealt with within that timeframe. Where it has taken us longer to respond than 
expected, (6 cases) customers were informed that there would be a delay, except where the customer 
could not be contacted (2 cases). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Happy Customers! 

 
From the 24 compliments received we can see that customers appreciate the range of services the 
Council provides, especially when we deal with their requests in a timely and professional manner.   
 

  
 
Here are some of the compliments we have received for information. 
 

Team Compliment Detail 

Lifeline Customer had a fall in the garden and called back in to say what a 
marvellous service we give and thanked us very much for our help. 
 

Customer Services Customer received a parking fine recently. He called into the 
customer service centre and was helped to complete an appeal form. 
The appeal has been upheld and he does not have to pay the fine. He 
was helped at customer services by Nicki Grainger. He wanted his 
thanks passed on to Nicki as he said she was extremely helpful and 
courteous. 

Refuse Customer spoke to Sandra at the depot to arrange a sofa to be 
collected. She would like to say how helpful Sandra was, as there 
were a few complications regarding the collection, as the customer 
lives on a narrow road. Also, she would like to thank the crew who 
collected it at the time that they said that they would. 

Street Cleaning Customer telephoned to pass on her thanks to the crew for the 
excellent job done in cleaning up Beoley Lane. She said that they had 
been very thorough. 
 

Street Cleaning Customer would like to compliment Allan the Sweeper who takes his 
time sweeping the frontage of the bank and the way he keeps this 
area clean and tidy. 
 

Development 
Control 

Customer emailed to say” Great service from Development Control “ 

Page 23



3.  Local Government Ombudsman Complaints 
 
There was 1 complaint referred from the Ombudsman this quarter.  
  

• The customer is unhappy with the decision for a planning application close to his home. A 
response to the Ombudsman is currently being prepared. 

 
This quarter there has also been a total of four complaints that the Ombudsman considered directly 
without an investigation and decided not to take any further. These are detailed below: 
 

• Customer complaint about New Homes Bonus Scheme. 

• Complaint about Council Tax Setting. 

• Complaint about development control- application process. 

• Complaint about Hagley, 106 monies and the way in which Cala Homes planning application 
dealt with. 

 

4.       Customer Service Centre Information 
 
This section provides some statistical information in respect of the amount of customer demand 
received via the telephone, face to face and through our payment channels.  
 
The operational purpose of the Customer Services team is ‘Help me get the support I need with my 
issue or problem’. Most customer demand is now passed to expert teams and the customer service 
staff act as a filter to ensure that the customer gets to see or speak to the right expert.  
 
We use this information to help us understand the demand on all Council services. 
 
The following tables and charts show the numbers of customer transactions recorded and trends over 
time. 
 
Face to face demand at the Customer Service Centre 
 
The following chart shows the total face to face enquiries being dealt with at the customer service 
centre on a month by month basis since April 2012. This is showing that there has been increase in 
face to face business since July 2012, but this is not the case. In June 2012 we implemented a new 
queue management system and therefore the data from July 2012 is more accurate.   
 
We can see that the total amount of demand has remained reasonably predictable since February 
2013. This is unusual as we would normally see a dip during February and a peak in March/April.  
 
As we continue to chart the demand data we will be able to see whether this changes over the coming 
months. 
 

Page 24



  
 
 
The following chart shows the breakdown of face to face customer enquiries received during the 1st 
quarter of 2013/14, compared with the same period last year. Due to the change in recording data 
during 2012/13 the data for that period cannot be used for comparison, only as an indicator of the 
spread of enquiry volumes.   
  

 
 
 
Telephone demand received  
 
The following chart shows the total telephone calls recorded on the customer service systems from 
April 2012 until the end of June 2103. This shows a significant peak during April 2013 and a sustained 
increase in calls received over the first quarter of 2013/14 compared with the same period last year.  
  
 

Page 25



 
 
The following chart shows the breakdown of calls received via the switchboard and customer contact 
centre phone lines by department during the quarter. (Calls made to direct dial lines are not recorded 
and therefore not included.) 
 
This shows the significant peak in calls as a result of the changes to the waste collection service, and 
also an increase in calls relating to Council Tax.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



Payments  
 
The following chart shows a month by month comparison of payments received by the cash office and 
customer services staff during the period April 2012 – July 2013. The peaks in November and 
January are due to the volumes of garden waste invoices dealt with at that time. We see an annual 
dip in February as Council Tax installments drop.  
 

 
 
This chart shows the breakdown of payments across all payment channels and shows an increase in 
telephone and internet payments.  
 

 
 
 
Amanda de Warr  
Head of Customer Services   
July 2013  
 
 

Page 27



 

Appendix  A 
Details of complaints received and outcomes 
 
Complaint details Days 

taken to 
respond  

Action taken Outcome update from 
Head of Service 

Business Transformation 

Customer reported that the 
automatized payment system 
not working. 
 

I day Spoken to customer and 
agreed we will look at the 
technical reason for the 
failure and correct it before 
calling him back again to 
confirm all is ok. 
 

No further action.  

Community Services 

Customer unhappy that he 
hasn’t received a response to 
his email regarding litter at the 
back of a business premise 
this was forwarded to the 
Community Enforcement 
Team. 
 

I day Customer makes 
significant number of 
reports about Community 
Safety issues and it is not 
possible to update him on 
progress on them all even 
though appropriate action 
is being taken. 
 

No further action taken 

Customer Services 

Customer unhappy that 
Bromsgrove Council is not in 
the telephone directory 

4 days Explanation given to 
customer about costs 
associated with having the 
number in the main part of 
the telephone directory. 
Customer advised where 
to find the number in the 
general community 
section.  
 

No further action 

Customer rang to complain 
about the quality of the 
recorded message on the 
telephone system at BDC 
switchboard. He thinks that the 
announcer sounds "drunk or 
drugged". 
 

11 days Discussed this with the 
customer and agreed this 
because the announcer 
has a regional accent and 
may not be clear as 
customer currently has ear 
complaint. 

No further action at this 
time. 

Customer unhappy that she 
was kept on hold for 50 
minutes and is concerned that 
other people are having this 
problem. 
 

10 days Customer using old 
telephone number which 
had not been routed into 
new telephone system 
when changed over. Now 
routed correctly. 

ICT deleting this 
number 

Page 28



 

Leisure and Culture 

Customer unhappy about 
details given to police by an 
usher ( caretaker) about an 
incident at planning committee 
that claimed he was the 
person causing a nuisance 
which started a criminal 

investigation against him. 

8 days Customer informed that 
this is a police matter 

Since the receipt of the 
letter the customer has 
contacted the Council to 
discuss this matter. He 
is now aware of the 
Council’s view and has 
indicated although he 
disagrees he is happy to 
disagree at this stage.  
As such the matter is 
considered as closed. 
 

Customer unhappy about the 
dangerous state of the play 
area in Stoke Road. 
 

5 days Customer contacted and 
plans for the play area 
discussed. 

No further action 

Environmental Services 

Customer was walking along 
the pavement and two men 
were using sit-on mowers to 
cut the grass. One of the men 
was looking behind him, 
talking to the other operative 
and almost ran her over. She 
had to swerve out of his way. 
He did not apologise or even 
acknowledge his mistake. 
 
 

12 days Letter of apology sent Operatives have been 
spoken to about taking 
care and acting 
courteously when 
mowing. 
NB This seems to be an 
isolated incident. 

Customer complained that a 
neighbour’s garden waste was 
emptied when it has a 2012 
label on it. Customer unhappy 
that they may be subsidising 
other households. 
 
 
 

10 days The charge had been paid 
and crew had checked 
this. Customer informed. 

We are currently 
carrying out a 
Transformation Review 
of garden waste and 
looking at the need for 
stickers. 

Customer complained that 
Waste Crew left the empty 
bins in the middle of shared 
driveway to 5 houses causing 
an obstruction. Customer 
could not exit the end of 
driveway and had to stop the 
car and get out and move the 
bins.  
 
 

1 day Apology given to customer. The crews have been 
spoken to about this as 
part of the Route 
Optimisation changes to 
ensure bins are 
returned properly. 

Page 29



 

Customer complained that 
Waste Crew has access to a 
key safe to access the bins, 
and are not securing the key 
after use. Customer reported 
that the crews rarely put the 
key away and lock it back up 
resulting in security concerns.  
 

14 days Officer has spoken to the 
crews about this and has 
apologised to customer 

The Team Leader is 
monitoring this situation. 

Customer on assisted 
collection complained bins are 
not being returned to agreed 
place 

27 days 
Problem 
contacting 
the 
customer 

Apology given to customer 
and crews informed 

The crews have been 
spoken to about this as 
part of the Route 
Optimisation changes to 
ensure bins are 
returned properly. 

Customer is unhappy that 
crews left his bin a long way 
down the road away from his 
house and they often leave it 
in the middle of his drive. 

4 days Spoken to crew and 
advised them of problem 

The crews have been 
spoken to about this as 
part of the Route 
Optimisation changes to 
ensure bins are 
returned properly. 

Customer unhappy with the 
attitude of a member of the 
waste crew who told her to 
empty the bin herself when 
she questioned why it hadn’t 
been emptied. 
 

21 
Staff 
concerned 
on leave 

Apology given to the 
customer- staff attitude will 
be monitored. 

Being monitored 

Customer unhappy about the 
amount of cigarette ends 
outside the Dolphin Centre 

13 days This area is cleaned 
regularly every day and 
this was explained to the 
customer. 
 

Environmental Services 
to liaise with Leisure 
Services regarding 
cigarette bins and 
signage. 

Customer complained that he 
was woken up by street 
cleaning machine outside his 
home at 6.25am. 
 

10 days Customer contacted and 
informed this this wasn’t 
our machine 

No further action. 

Customer complained that 
they had got wet when paying 
money to the Council when 
paying to park and requested 
covers. 
 

3 days Replied to the customer in 
a letter explaining that we 
will consider their 
suggestion of covers over 
the parking machines. 
 

No further action. 

Customer wrote to complain 
about her bins and other 
people’s bins are being 
carelessly left after being 
emptied and reported that this 
has happened on numerous 

15 days Apology given to customer 
and assurance that we are 
working to improve this 
situation 

The crews have been 
spoken to about this as 
part of the Route 
Optimisation changes to 
ensure bins are 
returned properly. 

Page 30



occasions.  

Customer hadn’t put the brown 
bin sticker on her bin. Spoke 
to the bin man who said he 
couldn't empty it without the 
sticker. She told him she had 
paid but they still didn't empty 
the bin 
 

16 days Contacted resident to 
explain the crew were 
acting on instructions. Not 
to empty garden waste 
bins without the correct 
sticker. 
 

Garden waste team 
investigating 

Customer unhappy that the 
truck for recycling cannot fit 
down her street to collect the 
recycling what is the street 
meant to do with the 
recycling?  
 
 

14 days Contacted the customer 
and explained the 
situation. Agreed 
alternative collection site. 

We have revised the 
collections to some hard 
to reach properties as 
part of Route 
Optimisation changes 
and will be reviewing 
others in October. 

Customer emailed about 
missed bin and also reported 
failure to reply to a missed bin 
collection online report.    
 

5 days Crew have not been 
collecting weekly as they 
thought the property could 
do with going fortnightly 
but did not have the 
authority to do this and did 
not inform the customer. 
 

Crew spoken to. Issue 
also resolved via route 
Optimisation. Apologies 
given to the customer. 
. 

Customer reported that the 
collection on Friday mornings 
coincides with school opening 
and causes an obstruction in 
the very busy road outside, 
with cars then mounting 
pavements (with children 
inside!) to get past the 
collection vehicle. 
 

15 days This will be reviewed by 
officers.  

New proposals are 
being drawn up to try 
and avoid this. 

Customer complained that 
they had ordered grey bin and 
not received it. 

15 days Additional resources have 
been allocated to catch up 
with excessive workloads. 

Two crews have been 
working continuously, 
which include Monday 
working to catch up. 
 
New bin deliveries are 
expected in early July to 
meet demand. 
 

Customer complained that 
whilst driving, they had 
approached a bend only to be 
faced by a waste collection 
truck parked on the wrong side 
of the road, and on the bend. 
 

15 days Crews have raised the 
issue of the speed of this 
vehicle.  
 
They could have been 
broken down or a similar 
vehicle parked up.  The 

This vehicle was not 
parked but carrying out 
collection duties. 

Page 31



The customer reported that 
there were two passengers in 
the truck, one of whom could 
easily have got out and 
directed traffic past the 
dangerously-parked vehicle. 
 
When customer got home, the 
two brown bins had been left 
across his drive, but the grey 
one was nowhere to be seen. 
 

crew were not parked 
illegally and were carrying 
out their daily duties 

Customer unhappy about the 
crews returning her bins and 
leaving them across her drive. 
She lives on the A38 and has 
specifically positioned her bins 
for easy access and storage 
because of the position of her 
property - if the bins are left in 
the middle of her drive she has 
to stop in the middle of a very 
busy road on the brow of a hill. 
She feels it is no more effort to 
return the bins to the correct 
storage space within her side 
of her drive.  
 

6 days Apology given as we failed 
to return bins to a safe 
location 

Passed to officer to 
address with crew. 
 

Customer complained about a 
crew member looking in her 
bin and taking out 2 atlas 
books, whilst emptying her 
recycling bin. 

5 days Spoken to customer and 
resolved the complaint 
immediately. Crew 
members have been 
spoken too regarding 
ownership of waste 
products presented 
 

No further action 
required 

Customer reported difficulties 
contacting the Environmental 
Services team. 
 

7 days Apologised to customer - 
asked what number was 
being used and gave direct 
line for Env Service for 
future reference – tested 
line and did not experience 
what customer did. 
 

No further action 
required 

Customer unhappy that after 
reporting a missing bin it 
wasn’t collected as arranged 
and when he reported it again 
a week later he was promised 
a call back but didn’t get one! . 
Customer has also waited 

5 days Bin has been collected and 
customer contacted to 
apologise.  
 
High volumes of calls have 
impacted on the waiting 
times to get through to the 

No further action 
required. 

Page 32



over 30 minutes each time to 
get through to the number 
called 

team dealing with 
enquiries.  

Customer unhappy as her 
request for additional green 
bin has not been responded to 
even though she has emailed 
3 times. 
 

1 day Apology given and bin 
delivered 

No further action 
required as due to high 
volume of issues at this 
time.  

Customer lives in a block of 
flats, with three very large 
dumpsters for refuse, which 
are kept in a fenced off area. A 
few weeks ago she came 
home to find all three 
dumpsters in her parking 
space. She had to get help to 
move them before she could 
park. She didn’t complain at 
the time, because it’s never 
happened before. On 12/06/13 
bin men did not return the bins 
but left them behind her car, 
and she couldn’t move it.  
 

8 days Advised supervisor to 
address crew to ensure 
bins are put back behind 
fenced off area and not left 
in car park 

Supervisor to speak to 
crew to ensure bins are 
put back behind fence. 

Planning and Regeneration 

Customer feels that she has 
not been given the right advice 
for a steel support to be fitted 
during buildings work and now 
damage has appeared as a 
result of lack of support to the 
ceiling 

10 days Explanation given to 
customer about the 
building control service 

No further action 
required 

Customer unhappy about the 
planning grant and decision 
notice for Old Birmingham 
Road. 

13 Explanation given to 
customer 

No further action 
required 

Formal complaint regarding 
handling of planning decision 
for two dwellings at 79 Old 
Birmingham Road.  

10 Explained to the customer 
that we are certain that the 
process and final decision 
procedure for this 
application has been 
handled correctly. 

No further action 
required 

Parish Council concerned 
about development at Old 
Fiery Hill. 

20 Letter sent on behalf of 
Monitoring Officer 
explaining situation. 

No further action 
required 

Customer concerned about 
information on the 106 monies 
not being on our website. 

4 days Customer contacted and 
told that we agree that it 
would be better if our 
website could be improved 
but that we can’t make the 

No further action 
required 

Page 33



changes in line with the 
timescales for live 
applications in Hagley. He 
understood and 
appreciated this. In any 
case we are already 
working with the local 
community to identify 
issues. 
 

Customers concerned about a 
confusing email he received 
from the Council. 

3 days The template response 
has been tested and fixed. 
  
Apology given to customer. 
 

No further action 
required 

Customer unhappy with the 
response he received from his 
planning objection. 
 

11 days This was an administrative 
error- apology given to the 
customer 

No further action 
required 

Customer unhappy that 
neighbour next door has not 
completed repair works to his 
listed property and that it looks 
unsightly and the noise of the 
repairs is stressful. He also 
wants to know why the Council 
hasn’t followed up the 
enforcement notice. 
 

20 We responded to his 
complaint in writing 
explaining our remit and 
answering other queries. 
We have arranged a 
meeting with him, 
neighbour, Ruth Bamford, 
Dale Birch and Mary 
Worsfold. 

No further action 
required 

Resources 

Customer phoned Saturday 
morning, very upset regarding 
Council Tax reminder she had 
received. She is unable to call 
during the week as she is at 
work until 6pm. She was very 
unhappy as the letter she 
received states the service is 
open on a Saturday and she 
always used to be able to 
resolve these issues on a 
Saturday. She wants to know 
why there is nobody available 
from Council Tax to provide 
this service and has requested 
a manager call her. 
 

43 
Several 
calls 
made 
before 
making 
contact 
with 
customer 

Spoke to customer and 
resolved situation.  

Amended 
documentation with 
revised opening hours 

Customer complaining about 
the ‘bedroom tax’. He has 
autism and has medical 
documents to prove he 

15 days Customer’s expectation is 
different to what the 
Council can provide. 
However there is an 

 

Page 34



requires an extra bedroom. He 
has a bedroom converted to a 
bathroom which was 
converted before he moved in 
to property. Says people older 
have been allowed an extra 
room so is accusing BDC of 
age discrimination. Has been 
informed by benefits that his 
benefit will be reduced. Says 
this is unfair. Property was 
given to him to meet his 
needs. Has applied to BDC for 
a grant to change the 
bathroom back to a bedroom 
but this was denied. 

appeal taking place 

Customer unhappy with the 
attitude of a member of the 
benefits team. Customer not 
happy that the rest of the 
office would have been able to 
hear their conversation as 
customer could hear 
everything as not on hold. 
 

15 Apology given to customer 
and reminder issued to 
staff to give name and to 
put call on hold 

No further action 

Customer has been trying to 
resolve revised and correct 
Council Tax bills for two 
months.” I am making every 
effort to notify you of changes 
at a difficult time for me and 
the position is far from 
satisfactory”. 
 

3 days Apology given to customer. 
Reminder to staff to 
respond in timely fashion 
to complaint and provide 
full and accurate reasoning 
for refusal to award 
discount 

No further action 

Customer rang today to speak 
to a manager. He had just 
been into the CSC to pay his 
Council Tax and was told he 
owed more than he thought. 
He was very upset and said he 
feels upset every time he has 
to go in the CSC. He always 
comes away feeling bad. 
 

1 day No further action taken as 
staff have gone the extra 
mile to help the customer 

No further action 

Customer complained that he 
had phoned twice to speak to 
council tax, but that the 
system then cut him off 
because no officers were free. 
 
 

9 days A letter of apology was 
issued apologising for the 
problems with the phones 
and access to speak with a 
member of staff 

Contact Centre module 
to be installed shortly. 
Should alleviate 
problem. 

Page 35



 

Customer complained that she 
had tried numerous times and 
cannot get through to council 
tax. She is not happy and 
doesn’t like the way it just cuts 
her off at the end. 
 

6 days A letter of apology was 
issued apologising for the 
problems with the phones 
and access to speak with a 
member of staff 

Contact Centre module 
to be installed shortly 
Should alleviate 
problem 

Customer posted in Direct 
Debit mandate for Council Tax 
payments at least 3 weeks 
ago. She is now in France 
(she spends half the year 
there) and has been told that 
she has received a demand 
letter from Council tax advising 
she has seven days to pay her 
council tax. She has called 6 
times today from France to 
speak to Council tax and has 
been unable to get through to 
the department. 
 

4 days Apology offered to 
customer and this was 
accepted. Account 
updated 

Contact Centre module 
to be installed shortly. 
Should alleviate 
problem 

The customer has tried to 
contact benefits several times. 
Most times she gets 
transferred through and gets a 
voicemail or is cut off. After 
several attempts the customer 
finally got through in which she 
asked for a change of circs 
form which she claims it was 
never sent as hasn't received 
it. She then phoned again and 
again she was told a form will 
be sent. Since this she has 
had a letter off us telling her, 
her benefits have been 
suspended to do a change 
and that there is no record of 
her requesting these forms. 
 

1 day Apology given for not 
noting original request. 

Contact Centre module 
to be installed shortly. 
Should alleviate 
problem 

Customer informed Benefits of 
new bank details for housing 
benefit and visited the centre 
on several occasions to check 
they were going to pay the 
Housing Benefit into his new 
account, on each visit 
customer was assured that it 
would be paid into the new 

14 days Mistake made. Faster 
payment made and 
customer able to pay rent 

Not feasible to put 
anything in place to 
prevent a similar 
mistake. 

Page 36



account. When payment was 
made it went into the old now 
closed account - this has 
caused problems as customer 
now has no money to pay rent. 
Customer reported that a 
member of the benefits staff 
had told them that the bank 
will return the money to the 
council but until this happened 
they cannot pay any money. 
 

Customer complaining she is 
paying council tax and not 
getting the service she 
deserves - rang could not get 
through and the automatic 
payment systems does not 
work. 
 

18 days Customers account up to 
date, no arrears. 

Contact Centre module 
to be installed shortly. 
Should alleviate 
problem. 
Maintenance of ATP 
being carried out 
03/07/2013. 

Customer tried to contact 
revenues several times 
following a reminder notice for 
council tax he claims does not 
owe. It was for a previous 
address and he had previously 
been assured  he had paid 
everything that was owed  
Numerous calls were made to 
CSC who tried in vain to 
connect him with the revenues 
department -- there was no 
holding facility or opportunity 
to leave a message for 
someone to phone him back. 

16 days Customer contacted  and 
he is happy that the matter 
is now resolved in the form 
of a payment received 

Contact Centre module 
to be installed shortly. 
Should alleviate 
problem 

Customer complained about 
level of service. Customer 
reported that as a single 
parent on a small salary they 
cannot afford to suddenly be 
sent a large bill for any amount 
owing, hence the reason for 
immediate notification. 
Customer reported that they  
have also gone from a weekly 
wage to monthly so need to 
know how much the new direct 
debit payment will be and from 
when the change will start as 
soon as possible. 
 

9 days Telephone call has been 
made by customer and an 
apology has been made 
for the delay in getting 
back to her 

 

Page 37



 

Customer contacted CSC to 
query correspondence from  
Finance with invoices relating 
to life line equipment, Letter 
had wrong name for reference 
and resulted in  her being 
transferred to four different 
people before arriving back at 
Customer Services where she 
was informed she would have 
to be transferred to someone 
else. Customer feels this is 
extremely confusing for elderly 
vulnerable people. 
 

I day Dealt with call at point of 
contact 

This issue is being 
looked at as part of a 
Lifeline income billing 
and collection 
intervention 

Customer is unhappy that she 
has received a court summons 
for her business rates after 
making an arrangement plan. 

13 days Customer contacted to 
discuss her payment 
options and apology given 
for her earlier query not 
being responded to 
correctly. 
 

Business Rates matter 
resolved, Revenues 
Manager telephoned 
customer and discussed 
issues. 

Customer has sent in a 
complaint card saying that she 
received a letter regarding 
Council Tax regarding 
information about her son who 
passed away 8 years ago. 
This was very upsetting and 
has had an impact on her 
health.  

13 days The Council were not 
aware of this and apology 
given to the customer. 

No further action 

Customer rang Revenues and 
was very upset at the way she 
was spoken to. She said  
officer was very rude and not 
respectful 

13 days   

 

 

Page 38



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

APRIL - JUNE (QUARTER 1) FINANCE MONITORING REPORT 2013 /14 

 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth 

Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas Head of Finance and 
Resources 

Non-Key Decision  

 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To report to Cabinet on the Council’s financial position for the period April -

June 2013 (Quarter 1 – 2013 /14)  
 

1.2 At Council Tax Setting members approved a number of savings, these are 
detailed in Appendix 2 with an update on progress 

 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny Board note the current financial position on 

Revenue and Capital as detailed in the report. 
 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
3.1 This report provides details of the financial information across the Council. 

The aim is to ensure officers and members can make informed and 
considered judgement of the overall position of the Council.    

 
3.2 During the budget process Heads of Service identified various savings that 

they would achieve during 2013/14.  Details of these and there progress are 
included in Appendix 2. 

 
3.3 A separate finance report for each department plus a council summary is 

shown on the following pages. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

 
 

Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Overall Council 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Budget  
April - June 

£’000 

Actual Spend 
April – June  

£’000 

Variance to 
date 

April - June 
£’000 

Environmental 
Services 

4,036 191 253 62 

Community Services 2,447 449 442 -7 

Leisure & Cultural 
Services 1,962 531 531 0 

Planning & 
Regeneration 1,193 98 91 -7 

Pre-Regulatory 
Services 

740 50 45 -5 

Customer Services 1 91 89 -2 

Finance & Resources 773 26 5 -21 

Legal, Equalities & 
Democratic Services 

1,377 203 162 -41 

Business 
Transformation 

40 484 449 -35 

Corporate Services 1,695 518 526 8 

SERVICE TOTAL  14,264 2,641 2,593 -48 

Interest Payable 75 19 0 -19 

Interest on 
Investments 

-67 -17 -20 -3 

COUNCIL SUMMARY 14,272 2,643 2,573 -70 

Financial Commentary: 

• Environmental Services – initial issues relating to Route optimisation of waste rounds 
teething problems which will delay anticipated savings.  It is anticipated these will not 
be material. 

• Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services – £28K of savings are predominantly due to 
vacant posts in all three areas, however a service review has taken place and the new 
structure came in to effect from 01/07/13.  Budgets will be revised and reflected in the 
2nd Qtr report.   There are also savings within the Members services as not all of the 
posts were appointed to in the 1st Qtr, there is also an under spend from the Members 
training budget. 

• Finance & Resources variance is due to the Corporate training budget as explained 
further below. 
 

 
 
 

Page 40



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Capital Budget summary Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 – Overall Council 
 

Department 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Budget 
April – June 

£’000 

Actual spend 
April – June 

£’000 

    Variance 
      to date 
  April – June 
      £’000 

Environmental 
Services 

1,725 427 430 3 

Community 
Services 

993 86 89 3 

Leisure & Cultural 
Services 

933 174 172 -2 

Planning and 
Regeneration 

4,473 9 9 0 

Pre-Regulatory 
Services 

56 3 3 0 

Financial Services 25 25 17 -8 

Business 
Transformation 

34 34 11 -23 

TOTAL 8,239 758 731 -27 

Financial Commentary: 
 

• North Cemetery Phase 2 – will begin this year, meeting with designers to take place 

• Within Business Transformation requirements for members and the Microsoft Office 
Project are currently under review.  
 

 

Page 41



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

 

 

Environmental Services   Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 

 
Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Environmental 
Services   
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  

April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April - June 

£’000 

Variance to 
date 

April - June 
£’000 

Car Parks/Civil 
Parking 
Enforcement 

-495 -87 -43 44 

Cemeteries/ 
Crematorium 

89 10 7 -3 

Cesspools/ 
Sewers 

-82 -26 -10 16 

CMT 0 13 13 0 

Depot 21 222 202 -20 

Grounds 
Maintenance 

631 104 101 -3 

Highways 255 38 26 -12 

Public 
Conveniences 

42 9 10 1 

Refuse & Recycling 2,241 -303 -266 37 

Street Cleansing 1,290 192 191 -1 

Transport -48 -14 -10 4 

Waste Management 
Policy 

-5 9 9 0 

Climate Change 48 12 6 -6 

Land Drainage 49 12 17 5 

TOTAL 4,036 191 253 62 

Financial Commentary: 

• Reduced income for car parks which officers are reviewing. 

• Following the route optimisation of Waste rounds, there have been a few issues which 
have caused delay.  This has meant that some of the anticipated savings will be 
delayed.  Senior managers and financial officer will be meeting to go through the 
budgets and saving predictions before the half year. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

Capital Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 Environmental 
Services   
 

Service  

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Budget 
April - 
June 
£’000 

Actual 
Spend  

April – June 
£’000 

   Variance 
    to date 
April – June 
     £’000 

Depot Site Security 46 22 22 0 

Vehicle & Equipment 
replacement programme 

1,303 346 350 4 

Rollout Bins – Round Extension 
150 38 38 0 

North Cemetery Phase 2 179 0 0 0 

Cemetery Toilets 
23 1 1 0 

Bromsgrove Monument – 
Armed Forces Monument 

20 20 19 -1 

CPE (Civil Parking 
Enforcement) 

4 0 0 0 

TOTAL 
1,725 427 430 3 

Financial Commentary: 

• North Cemetery Phase 2 – will begin this year, meeting with designers to take place 

• A separate report will be coming to Members regarding the Cemetery toilets and the 
requirement for additional budget. 

  

Community Services Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 
 

Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Community 
Services 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  

April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April – June 

£’000 

Variance to date 
April - June 

£’000 

Housing Strategy 
1,875 271 260 -11 

Community Safety 
& Transport 

  551 171 175 
 

4 
 

Community 
Cohesion 

21 7 7 0 

TOTAL 2,447 449 442 -7 

Financial Commentary: 

• There are no significant variances to report at this stage 
 

Page 43



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

 
Capital Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 Community 
Services 
 

 
 
Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Leisure and 
Cultural Services   
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  

April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April - June 

£’000 

Variance to 
date 

April - June 
£’000 

Business 
Development 

30 235 241 6 

Cultural Services 337 72 72 0 

Leisure & Cultural 
Management 

-12 14 14 0 

Parks & Open 
Spaces 

468 43 36 -7 

Sports Services 
1,139 167 168 1 

TOTAL  1,962 531 531 0 

Financial Commentary: 

• The underspend within Parks & Open Spaces is due to a vacant post.  This has 
now been filled with effect from July. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service  

Revised 
Budget 
2013/14 
£’000 

Budget 
April – June 

£’000 

Actual Spend 
April – June 

£’000 

   Variance 
     to date 
 April – June 
      £’000 

Strategic Housing 993 89 89 0 

TOTAL 993 89 89 0 

Financial Commentary: 

• Expenditure is expected within the forth coming quarters 
 

Page 44



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

 
Capital Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 Leisure and 
Cultural Services   
 

Service 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Budget 
April – June 

£’000 

Actual Spend 
April – June 

£’000 

      Variance 
         to date 
    April – June 
         £’000 

Sports Facilities 468 103 103 0 

Play Areas 
370 71 69 -2 

Other Schemes 
95 0 0 0 

TOTAL 933 174 172 -2 

Financial Commentary: 

• The Section 106 funded project at Wythall Community Park was included in the MTFP 
for 2013/14 as £152K.  However, the total Section 106 receipt is £303K, so the 
Capital Programme needs to be increased by an additional £151K. 
 

 
 
Planning and Regeneration Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 

 

 
Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Planning and 
Regeneration 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  

April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April - June 

£’000 

Variance to 
date 

April - June 
£’000 

Building Control -5 -34 -42 -8 

Development Control 494 37 33 -4 

Strategic Planning 470 75 65 -10 

Economic & Tourism 
Development 

226 29 28 -1 

Emergency Planning 13 3 3 0 

Land Charges -50 -22 -14 8 

Town Centre 
Development 

45 10 18 8 

TOTAL 1,193 98 91 -7 

Page 45



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

Financial Commentary: 

• Strategic Planning received reimbursement of underspent contribution to WCC for 
Community Infrastructure Levy work.  

 
Capital Budget summary Quarter 1(April – June) 2013 /14 Planning and 
Regeneration 
 

Service  

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Budget 
April – June 

£’000 

Actual Spend 
April – June 

£’000 

      Variance 
        to date 
    April – June 
          £’000 

Town Centre 
Development  - 
Project 
Management 
 

54 0 0                  0 

Town Centre 
Development – 
Public Realm 

919 9 9 0 

Parkside School - 
New Offices 

3,500 0 0 0 

TOTAL 4,473 9 9                0 

Financial Commentary: 

• Town Centre Development – Public Realm awaiting works to be carried out by WCC 
before our work can commerce. 
 

 

  

Regulatory - Client Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 

 
Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Regulatory 
Client 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget 

 April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April - June 

£’000 

Variance to date 
April - June 

£’000 

Environmental 
Health 

922 91 86 -5 

Licensing 
-182 -41 -41 0 

TOTAL 740 50 45 -5 

Financial Commentary: 

• Environmental Health transferred to Regulatory Services 1st June 2010 
 

 

Page 46



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

 
 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 

 

 
Capital Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 Regulatory 
Services 
 

Service  

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Budget 
April – June 

£’000 

Actual Spend 
April – June  

£’000 

     Variance  
       to date 
   April – June 
        £’000     

Worcestershire 
Enhanced Two Tier 
Programme (WETT) 

56 0 0 0 

TOTAL 56 0 0 0 

Financial Commentary:  

• The expenditure is jointly funded by all partners in accordance with the business case.  
The budget for 13/14 is £503k, BDC share at 11.05% £56k. 

 
 
 
Customer Services   Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 

 
Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Customer 
Services   
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  

April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April - June 

£’000 

Variance to 
date 

April - June 
£’000 

Customer 
Services 

1 91 89 -2 

TOTAL 1 91 89 -2 

Financial Commentary: 

• There are no significant variances to report at this stage 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

 
 
Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Finance and 
Resources   
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget   

April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April - June 

£’000 

Variance to 
date 

April - June 
£’000 

Accounts & Financial 
Mgmt 

-16 117 117 0 

Human Resources & 
Welfare 

0 68 48 -20 

Revenues & Benefits 789 -159 -160 -1 

TOTAL 773 26 5 -21 

Financial Commentary: 

• There is an under spend on Corporate Training in this Qtr as Human Resources are 
currently visiting management teams to establish training requirements, to be 
reviewed for 2nd Qtr. 
 

 
Capital Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 Financial & 
Resources 
 

Service 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Budget 
April – June 

£’000 

Actual Spend 
April – June  

£’000 

     Variance 
       to date 
   April – June 
        £’000 

Income 
Management PCI 
Compliance 

25 25 17 -8 

TOTAL 25 25 17 -8 

Financial Commentary:  

• The scheme is currently in progress and more costs are expected to be incurred 
 

  Finance and Resources   Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 

Page 48



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

 

 
 
Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget 

April – June 
£’000 

Actual 
Spend  

April - June 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 

April - June 
£’000 

CMT  0 12 12 0 

Democratic Services & 
Member Support 

1,166 113 91 -22 

Elections & Electoral Services 204 12 11 -1 

Legal Advice & Services 7 66 48 -18 

TOTAL 1,377 203 162 -41 

Financial Commentary: 

• Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services – £28K of savings are predominantly due to 
vacant posts in all three areas, however a service review has taken place and the 
new structure came in to effect from 01/07/13. Budgets will be revised and reflected 
in the 2nd Qtr report. 

• There are also savings within the Members services as not all of the posts were 
appointed to in the 1st Qtr, there is also an under spend from the Members training 
budget. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 

Page 49



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

Business Transformation Quarter 1 (April - June) 2013 /14 
 

Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Business 
Transformation 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  

April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April - June 

£’000 

Variance to date 
April - June 

£’000 

IT Services 29 450 424 -26 

Business 
Transformation 

0 16 9 -7 

Policy & 
Performance 

11 18 16 -2 

TOTAL 40 484 449 -35 

Financial Commentary: 

• The underspend within IT Services is due to vacancies within the department and 
re-negotiation of software contracts 

• The underspend within Business Transformation is due to vacancies within the 
department 

 
 
Capital Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 Business 
Transformation 
 

Service 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Budget 
April – June 

£’000 

Actual Spend 
April – June 

£’000 

  Variance to date 
     April – June 
          £’000 

Member ICT 
Facilities 

9 9 0 -9 

Sunray Devices 9 9 11 2 

ESX Services 16 16 0 -16 

TOTAL 34 34 11 -23 

Financial Commentary: 

• Member ICT Facilities are currently being reviewed  

• ESX servers are part of the Office project which is currently under review 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

Revenue Budget summary Quarter 1 (April – June) 2013 /14 – Corporate 
Services 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget 
2013 /14 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  

April - June 
£’000 

Actual Spend 
April - June 

£’000 

Variance to date 
April - June 

£’000 

Corporate 
Resources  

1,614 445 461 16 

Corporate Admin / 
Central Post / 
Printing 

81 73 65 -8 

TOTAL 1,695 518 526 8 

Financial Commentary: 

• The underspend within Corporate Admin, Central Post and Printing is related to 
vacant posts within the department, these are due to be filled in August.  

• The overspend within Corporate Resources is due to the vacancy management 
provision which is offset by underspends in departments within departments. 

 
 
 
 
4. TREASURY MANAGEMENT  
 
4.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy has been developed in 

accordance with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance prudential 
indicators and is used to manage risks arising from financial instruments. 
Additionally treasury management practices are followed on a day to day 
basis.  

 
4.2 The Council receives credit rating details from its Treasury Management 

advisers on a daily basis and any counterparty falling below the criteria is 
removed from the list of approved institutions. 
 

4.3 Due to market conditions the Council has reduced its credit risk for all new 
investments by only investing in the highest rated instruments and has 
shortened the allowable length of investments in order to reduce risk. 
 

4.4 At 30th June short term investments comprised: 
 

 31st March 
2013 
£000 

30th June 
2013 
£000 

Deposits with Banks/Building Societies 10,800 12,000 

Total 10,800 12,000 

 
  
 

Page 51



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

Income from investments and other interest 
 

4.5 An investment income target of £67k has been set for 2013 /14 using a 
projected return rate of 0.75% – 1.50 %. During the past financial year bank 
base rates have remained 0.5% and current indications are projecting 
minimal upward movement for the short term.  
 

4.6 In the 3 months to 30 June the Council received income from investments of 
£20k.  
 

5. REVENUE BALANCES  
 
5.1  Revenue Balances 
 

The revenue balances brought forward at 1 April 2013 were £3.093m 
(subject to audit).  Excluding the impact of any projected over or under 
spends it is anticipated that £97k will be transferred from balances during 
2013 /14 to fund revenue expenditure; giving a current projected balance at 
31 March 2013 of £2.996m.  
 
Legal Implications 

 
  None. 
 
 Service/Operational Implications  
 
 All included in financial implications. 
 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  
 
 None as a direct result of this report 
 
7.  RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
7.1   Risk considerations covered in the report.  There are no Health & Safety 

considerations 
  
8.  APPENDICES 
  
  Appendix 1 Reserves Transfers to be approved 
  Appendix 2 Review of savings identified in budget round 
  Appendix 3 Capital Program to be approved 
  
9.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Available from Financial Services 
 

10.  KEY 
 

Page 52



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

 

  None  
  
AUTHORS OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Sam Morgan – Financial Services Manager 
Email:  sam.morgan@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  (01527) 549130 ext 3790 
 
Name:  Zoe Martin - Senior Accountancy Technician 
Email:  z.martin@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  (01527) 881643 
 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Bromsgrove District Council

Earmarked Reserves Final Accounts Schedule

2013/14

Description

Cost 

Centre

Balance at 

31 March 

2013 (Q4) 

£000

Transfers In 

(New 

Reserves) 

£000

Transfers In 

(Existing 

Reserves) 

£000

Budgeted 

release (budget 

saving 13/14) & 

budgeted R&R    

£000

Drawdown 

from 

Reserves 

£000

Q1 

movement

Balance at 

30 June 

2013 (Q1) 

£000
Purpose (New Reserves)/ 

Comments

Ballot box and Booths XX767 -10 7 7 -3 

Health and Wellbeing (CM20) XX772 -9 5 5 -4 

TRUNK/AOHN XX779 -85 -23 15 -8 -93 

Apprenticeships XX816 -32 5 5 -27 

CRC New Burdens XX818 -13 -16 -16 -30 

Welfare Reform Act - Benefits XX825 -19 -13 -13 -32 

Localising C/Tax New Burdens Grant XX832 0 -42 -42 -42 

Local Authority Data Sharing (LADS) XX833 0 -13 -13 -13 

-1,994 -55 -53 0 32 -76 -2,069 

S:\2013-14 Financial Year\Final Accounts\Reserves & Balances\Earmarked Reserves Schedule 13-14.xlsx 27/08/2013

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



S
A

V
IN

G
S

 -
 I

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
c

o
m

e
 (

in
c

o
m

e
 g

ro
w

th
)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

N
e
t 

s
a
v
in

g
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 

2
0
1
3
/1

4

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 (
li
n

k
 t

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 e

tc
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

t 
e
n

d
 o

f 
fi

rs
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r

D
u
p
lic

a
te

 p
e
n
s
io

n
 b

a
c
k
fu

n
d
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e
t

B
D

C
 R

e
g
 C

lie
n
t

3
2

S
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

2
6

W
ill

 b
e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 o

n
ly

B
u
d
g
e
t 
g
iv

e
n
 u

p
 a

s
 e

xp
e
n
d
it
u
re

 m
e
t 
fr

o
m

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
.

L
if
e
lin

e
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

4
1

S
a
v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 S
h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

S
a
v
in

g
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 f

ig
u
re

s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
f 

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t

C
C

T
V

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

5
6

S
a
v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 S
h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

S
a
v
in

g
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 f

ig
u
re

s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
f 

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t

C
C

T
V

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 S

L
A

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

2
5

In
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 s
e
lli

n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 S
L
A

 w
it
h
 W

F
D

C
.

H
IA

 (
h
o
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
e
n
c
y
) 

S
L
A

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

0
S

e
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 t
a
b
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 S
L
A

 -
 D

e
re

k
 A

lle
n

T
h
e
 T

ru
n
k
 -

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

0
S

e
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 t
a
b
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 S
L
A

 -
 I
 h

a
v
e
 n

e
w

 S
L
A

T
h
e
 L

o
u
n
g
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

0
S

e
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 t
a
b
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 S
L
A

 

A
m

p
h
le

tt
 H

a
ll

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
1
0

G
ra

n
t

S
L
A

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fi
n
is

h
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
, 
n
o
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
is

 t
im

e

E
xt

e
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 F

e
e
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
6
8

R
e
d
u
c
e
 f

e
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 1

2
/1

3
 f

e
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re

S
h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
m

m
s
/P

ri
n
t/
G

ra
p
h
ic

s
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
1

S
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

1
1
7

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 -

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C

S
A

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 d
e
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e
 p

o
s
ts

 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 s

a
la

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

1
T

ra
in

in
g
 -

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff

 b
a
s
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g

S
ta

ff
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 
is

 e
xp

e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

2
C

le
a
n
in

g
 -

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ta

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t.

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

2

C
a
s
h
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 -

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
y
s
te

m
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
d
u
c
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
e
 

T
h
e
 e

xp
e
c
te

d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

C
o
u
n
ty

 E
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
E

le
c
ti
o
n
s

0
F

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 C
C

 -
 s

e
e
 P

re
s
s
u
re

 t
a
b
.

S
to

p
 l
o
c
k
in

g
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 g

a
te

s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t

6

W
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
ly

 h
a
v
e
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
to

 l
o
c
k
 a

ll 
th

e
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 g

a
rt

e
s
 

a
t 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 b

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
. 
P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 -

 

g
a
te

s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
e
ft

 u
n
lo

c
k
e
d
, 
it
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 

b
e
h
a
v
o
iu

r 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 i
n
 R

e
d
d
it
c
h
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

c
o
n
s
e
s
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

S
to

p
 f

re
e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

t 
C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

C
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

1
0

 C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

e
 o

ff
e
r 

fr
e
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
 B

D
C

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

 w
e
e
k
e
n
d
s
 

b
e
fo

re
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
.

A
n
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 l
a
tt
e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

3
rd

 q
tr

 (
fo

r 
la

s
t 
tw

o
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
s
 

b
e
fo

re
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
)

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 r

o
ta

's
 c

le
a
n
s
in

g

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
9

D
u
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 r

o
ta

's
 t
h
e
 c

le
a
n
s
in

g
 t
e
a
m

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 p

a
rt

 

ti
m

e
 p

o
s
t 
a
s
 a

 s
a
v
in

g
.

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 s

a
la

ri
e
s

S
to

p
 l
o
c
k
in

g
 p

a
rk

 g
a
te

s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

G
ro

u
n
d
s

-1
 

W
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

a
y
 G

M
 o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
s
 £

4
K

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 S

a
n
d
e
rs

 p
a
rk

. 
N

e
t 
o
f 

re
v
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 b
o
lla

rd
s
. 
L
o
c
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
te

 o
n
ly

 p
re

v
e
n
ts

 v
e
h
ic

le
 a

c
c
e
s
s
, 
th

e
 

b
o
lla

rd
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
 f

ro
m

 d
ri
v
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 g

ra
s
s
. 
A

g
a
in

 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

if
 c

a
r 

d
ri
v
e
rs

 m
e
e
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

. 
P

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
a
ff

e
c
te

d
.

S
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 s

a
v
e
 b

id
 -

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 o

n
w

a
rd

s

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
d
 d

ie
s
e
l

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

G
ro

u
n
d
s

2

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 B
D

C
 f

le
e
t 
ru

n
s
 o

n
 w

h
it
e
 d

ie
s
e
l.
 S

o
m

e
 b

it
s
 o

f 
e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
ra

c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 m

o
w

e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 r
u
n
 o

n
 R

e
d
 d

ie
s
e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 a

tt
a
c
h
s
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

d
u
ty

.
R

e
d
 d

ie
s
e
l 
u
s
a
g
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 f

ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r

R
o
u
te

 o
p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 B

D
C

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

R
e
fu

s
e

7
4

T
h
is

 w
ill

 s
e
e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ro
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
 

s
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
. 
E

xp
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
f 

1
0
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 t
o
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
lin

k
 t
o
 u

n
a
v
o
id

a
b
le

 D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
ro

u
te

 o
p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 

it
 i
s
 e

xp
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ro

u
n
d
s
 b

y
 o

n
e
, 
th

is
 s

a
v
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
 

ra
ta

 a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
o
c
c
u
r 

u
n
ti
l 
p
a
rt

 w
a
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 1

3
/1

4
, 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a
r 

1
4
/1

5
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 w

ill
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 f

u
ll 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
1
0
2
k
 

**
**

 (
ie

 a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
2
8
k
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r)

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

o
u
te

 o
p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 r
o
u
n
d
s
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 f
e
w

 

te
e
th

in
g
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 
s
o
m

e
 t
h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
e
la

y
e
d
. 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
to

 g
o
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 &
 s

a
v
in

g
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
fo

re
 2

n
d
 q

tr
 &

 a
llo

c
a
te

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
h
e
a
d
s
 w

it
h
in

 c
o
s
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
 D

W
1
1
.

S
w

it
c
h
 b

in
 t
y
p
e

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

R
e
fu

s
e

1
0

T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 s
e
e
 u

s
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ia
m

o
n
d
 l
if
t 
b
in

s
 i
n
 a

 a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
w

it
h
 c

o
m

b
 l
if
t 
th

a
t 
a
re

 c
h
e
a
p
e
r.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
u
te

 

o
p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 a

ll 
g
re

e
n
 a

ll 
g
re

y
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

u
t 
it
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 

o
n
 a

n
 a

re
a
 b

a
s
is

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
c
re

w
s
 o

n
ly

 c
o
lle

c
t 
o
n
e
 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
b
in

.
T

h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

e
t 
a
s
 n

e
w

 b
in

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
e
h
ic

le
 t
y
p
e

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

R
e
fu

s
e

1
5

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

h
ir
e
 c

o
s
ts

 b
y
 r

e
p
la

c
in

g
 w

it
h
 o

w
n
 s

m
a
lle

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
 a

c
tu

a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
 i
s
 

£
2
5
k
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 £
1
0
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 c

o
s
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 v
e
h
ic

le
. 
N

e
t 
o
f 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
£
1
5
K

. 

H
ir
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 m

id
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 m

a
jo

r 
re

p
a
ir
s
 o

n
 e

xi
s
ti
n
g
 f

le
e
t 

v
e
h
ic

le
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
 b

y
 a

p
p
ro

x 
£
2
k

E
xt

e
n
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 u
s
in

g
 G

e
m

s
 t
o
 

in
a
c
c
e
s
s
a
b
le

 a
re

a
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

R
e
fu

s
e
 

(g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

)
5
9

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 c

h
e
c
k
 i
f 

it
 s

h
o
u
ld

 j
u
s
t 
b
e
 t
h
e
 e

xt
ra

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 9

9
 &

 1
0
5
 i
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
6
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 y

e
a
r

S
a
v
in

g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

o
lli

n
g
 o

u
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 i
n
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

re
a
s
 -

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 a

t 
q
tr

 2

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 C

e
s
s
p
o
o
ls

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
- 

w
a
s
te

9
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

o
s
t 
s
e
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 b

id

S
a
v
in

g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

b
a
s
e
 -

  
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
m

p
ty

in
g
s
 a

t 
F

ra
n
k
le

y
 G

re
e
n
 a

n
d
 D

o
d
fo

rd
 

p
u
m

p
in

g
 s

ta
ti
o
n
s
 (

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
)

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
A

d
m

in
 G

ra
n
t

F
in

a
n
c
e

2
0

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
b
s
id

y
 p

a
y
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

1
3
/1

4
 o

n
ly

.

N
N

D
R

F
in

a
n
c
e

6
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e

N
N

D
R

 1
 f

o
rm

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

c
o
s
t 
o
f 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d

N
N

D
R

F
in

a
n
c
e

9
1

R
e
lie

fs
 w

it
h
in

 c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

ta
in

e
d
 r

a
te

s
 f

ig
u
re

S
:\

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
Y

e
a
r\

R
e
ve

n
u

e
 M

o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
 1

3
-1

4
\J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

3
\S

a
vi

n
g

s
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 1
3

-1
4

.x
ls

xS
a
vi

n
g

s
 I

n
c
l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
In

c
 B

D
C

2
7

/0
8

/2
0

1
3

Page 57



S
A

V
IN

G
S

 -
 I

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
c

o
m

e
 (

in
c

o
m

e
 g

ro
w

th
)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t

N
e
t 

s
a
v
in

g
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 

2
0
1
3
/1

4

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 (
li
n

k
 t

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 e

tc
) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

t 
e
n

d
 o

f 
fi

rs
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s

L
e
g
a
l

1
7

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
y
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d

T
h
e
s
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 1

3
/1

4
 b

u
d
g
e
t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 3

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 w

a
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
b
u
t 
th

is
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t.

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

L
e
g
a
l

5
2

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
ra

n
s
o
fr

m
a
ti
o
n
. 
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 w

it
h
in

 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

p
ri
n
ti
n
g
, 
b
o
o
k
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
s
h
a
re

d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h
 R

e
d
d
it
c
h
.

U
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

s
t 
Q

tr
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
a
la

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 w

h
o
le

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

e
s
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 
0
1
/0

7
/1

3
. 
A

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 a
t 
2
n
d
 q

tr
 

w
ill

 g
iv

e
 a

n
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

s
a
v
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 1

3
/1

4
. 

In
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 W
C

C
L
e
g
a
l

1
5

C
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

le
g
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

T
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 n

o
w

 g
o
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 1

0
,0

0
0
 f

ro
m

 W
o
rc

e
s
te

r 
C

it
y
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

S
L
A

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

r 
C

o
u
n
ty

 b
ri
n
g
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

8
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

p
ro

-r
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

1
3
/1

4
 t
o
 6

,5
0
0
.

A
llo

tm
e
n
ts

L
e
is

u
re

2

S
a
v
in

g
 b

a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 f

e
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 b

y
 4

0
%

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 f
e
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 O

n
 t
h
is

 b
a
s
is

 a
 s

ix
th

te
e
n
th

 o
f 

a
n
 a

c
re

 p
lo

t 
(s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 s
iz

e
) 

w
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 £
2
8
.0

0
 t
o
 £

4
0
.0

0
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 

o
r 

fr
o
m

 £
2
.3

3
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

 t
o
 £

3
.3

3
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

. 
 T

h
is

 p
ri
c
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
  
s
ta

g
e
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

ls
o
. 

S
a
v
in

g
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 O
c
t'
1
3
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 l
e
g
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

o
 i
t 
w

ill
 d

e
p
e
n
d
 u

p
o
n
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 

th
a
t.

C
le

a
n
e
rs

L
e
is

u
re

1
2

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u

s
a
b
le

 p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

c
le

a
n
in

g
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
e
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u
ri
e
s
 l
e
s
s
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
/r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 (

v
a
c
a
te

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 

re
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

s
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 v

a
c
a
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 w
a
s
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
h
o
u
rs

 w
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 e

xi
s
ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff

 &
 a

g
e
n
c
y
. 
 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 l
in

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
e
 C

o
s
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

 r
a
te

s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 &

 l
o
w

e
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

.

P
a
rk

s
L
e
is

u
re

1
2

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 G
re

e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
a
rk

s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
S

a
n
d
e
rs

 P
a
rk

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

m
o
n
th

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 i
n
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
w

a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 

a
p
p
o
in

t 
s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
is

 a
re

a
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 u

s
e
 a

n
 e

xi
s
ti
n
g
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

a
rk

 t
e
a
m

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 d

a
y
 t
im

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
 C

a
s
u
a
l 
c
o
v
e
r 

w
ill

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

t 
w

e
e
k
e
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 b

a
n
k
 h

o
lid

a
y
s
 

(I
n
c
 l
e
a
v
e
 c

o
v
e
r)

 a
n
d
 t
h
is

 p
ro

v
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
 

T
h
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

xp
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
d
u
e
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

fo
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

&
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
tt
o
m

 l
in

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
s
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 l
o
w

e
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

.

P
a
rk

s
L
e
is

u
re

5

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 m

a
xi

m
is

in
g
 t
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
/p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rk

 a
re

a
s
, 
re

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

s
 a

s
 v

e
n
u
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 e

tc
. 

A
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
o
 d

a
te

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

&
 I
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
u
re

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t.

D
o
lp

h
in

 C
e
n
tr

e
L
e
is

u
re

5

F
re

e
z
e
 R

&
M

 s
p
e
n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 D

C
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
im

it
e
d
 l
if
e
 e

xp
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

S
C

. 
  

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

A
rt

s
 D

e
v

L
e
is

u
re

6

A
rt

ri
x 

fu
n
d
in

g
 e

xc
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
R

IP
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f

ro
z
e
n
 

u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
e
xp

ir
e
s
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 a

t 
£
1
2
0
,0

0
0
  
 A

s
 f

ro
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 t
h
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 A

rt
ri
x 

a
t 
£
6
0
k
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 

o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 B

D
C

 a
 £

6
0
k
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 s
a
v
in

g
. 

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

T
o
w

n
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 P

o
s
t

P
la

n
n
in

g
0

L
o
tt
e
ry

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

T
o
w

n
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 p

o
s
t 
(4

 y
e
a
rs

)

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

P
la

n
n
in

g
1
5

P
o
s
ts

P
o
s
ts

 g
iv

e
n
 u

p
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

3
7

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

v
e
n
u
e
s
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

a
v
in

g
s

T
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 s
h
a
re

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 a

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 H

o
u
rs

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

5
in

 H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

s
k
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 h

o
u
rs

 

fr
o
m

 0
1
 A

p
r 

1
3
.

S
h
a
re

d
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
M

g
rs

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

4
6

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 c

h
e
c
k
 w

it
h
 T

K
 i
f 

o
n
g
o
in

g
.

T
h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

e
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 S

h
a
re

d
 M

g
m

t 
is

 s
e
t 
to

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

2
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 h

o
u
rs

 -
 t
e
rm

 t
im

e
 h

o
u
rs

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

s
k
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 h

o
u
rs

 

fr
o
m

 0
1
 A

p
r 

1
3
.

C
h
ild

c
a
re

 v
o
u
c
h
e
rs

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

2
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 l
e
s
s

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

s
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

T
ra

in
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e
t

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

5
0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 T

ra
in

in
g
 b

u
d
g
e
t

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 1

3
/1

4
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 l
o
o
k
s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 b
e
 

m
e
t.

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 M
g
m

t
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

2
2

S
h
a
re

d
 T

re
a
s
u
ry

 M
g
m

t
T

h
is

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t,
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 u

p
d
a
te

 i
n
 2

n
d
 q

tr
.

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 B

id
s
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 -

 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s

0
L
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 b

id
s
 f

o
r 

e
q
u
a
lit

it
ie

s
 m

o
n
e
y

H
e
lp

d
e
s
k
 c

o
s
ts

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 -

 I
T

1
4

R
e
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
lp

d
e
s
k
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 m
e
a
n
s
 n

o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
o
u
ts

id
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

S
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 
a
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
h
e
lp

d
e
s
k
 n

o
t 
re

n
e
w

e
d

H
a
rd

w
a
re

 C
o
s
ts

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 -

 I
T

7
0

R
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
t 
a
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d

S
p
a
ti
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 -

 I
T

1
0

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
te

rm
s

S
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 
a
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d

S
o
ft

w
a
re

 C
o
s
ts

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 -

 I
T

9
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 -

 L
A

N
D

e
s
k
 a

n
d
 S

m
a
rt

p
o
in

t

S
m

a
rt

p
o
in

t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 1

3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
im

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 d

a
te

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
fi
n
is

h
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
1
3
/1

4
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 m

e
t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r,

 L
A

N
D

e
s
k
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

s
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r

e
n
e
w

e
d

W
C

C
 a

n
a
ly

s
t 
c
o
s
ts

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 -

 P
o
lic

y
7

P
o
s
t 
re

m
o
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 s
a
la

ry
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 b
u
ilt

 i
n
 f

o
r 

W
C

C
 a

n
a
ly

s
t 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
tr

a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

a
v
in

g
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

3
0

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

a
v
in

g
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
2
0

S
:\

2
0

1
3

-1
4

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
Y

e
a
r\

R
e
ve

n
u

e
 M

o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
 1

3
-1

4
\J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

3
\S

a
vi

n
g

s
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 1
3

-1
4

.x
ls

xS
a
vi

n
g

s
 I

n
c
l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
In

c
 B

D
C

2
7

/0
8

/2
0

1
3

Page 58



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Board 16th September 2013 
 

\\svsan008\moderngovdata\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\2\AI00014283\$mdrfirgm.doc/8.2.2013/LW 

SICKNESS ABSENCE PERFORMANCE AND HEALTH FOR PERIOD  
ENDING 31st March 2013 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Mark Bullivant 

Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance and 
Resources  

Non-Key Decision  
 

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

To report to Overview and Scrutiny Board on Bromsgrove District 
Council’s performance for the fourth quarter (January to March 2013) in 
relation to sickness absence. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Board  is requested to note the report 
 

3. KEY ISSUES 

 

Analysis of the monthly statistics for the quarter 
 

 Statistics for the quarter January to March 2013 compared to the 
previous quarter 

 

3.1 The graph below shows sickness absence for Bromsgrove District 
Council employees in the quarter January to March 2013, compared to 
the previous quarter (October to December 2012). 
  

Agenda Item 8

Page 59



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Board 16th September 2013 
 

\\svsan008\moderngovdata\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\2\AI00014283\$mdrfirgm.doc/8.2.2013/LW 

 

3.2 The average days lost per person for this quarter is 1.62 days per 
person compared to 2.16 days in the previous quarter.  This reflects an 
annual of 6.89 days which is a significant reduction on the annual 
estimated 8.75 days per employee. 

 
3.3 In addition there has been an overall reduction in sickness absence 

from last quarter.  
 
3.4 Further information in relation to long-term and short-term absence 

levels are detailed later in the report. 
 

Long-term absence for the quarter January to March 2013, compared 
to the previous quarter (October to December 2012)   
 

 
 

 
3.5 Overall there has been a reduction in the number of days lost due to 

long term absences.  However there has been an increase in long term 
absences in Resources and Planning & Regeneration.  HR continues to 
work with Service Managers and as a result a number of employees 
have returned to work which will be reflected in the next quarter report.  
Ongoing cases continue to be actively managed with the support of 
Human Resources  

 
3.6 The reduction in long term absence in WRS, Business Transformation 

and Customer Services, this is as a result of long term cases being 
resolved either through the employees returning to work or the dismissal 
of employees through capability due to ill health.   

 
3.7 There has been no change in the level of absence within Environmental 

services, service managers continue to work with HR and Trade Unions. 

Page 60



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Board 16th September 2013 
 

\\svsan008\moderngovdata\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\2\AI00014283\$mdrfirgm.doc/8.2.2013/LW 

 
 
3.8 Changes were introduced in July to the Councils Sickness Policy which 

should assist in the reduction of long term absence.  In addition to this 
HR are currently working with managers to review how sickness 
absence is being reported and how staff are being supported on their 
return to work. 
 
Short-term absence for the quarter January to March 2013, compared to 
the previous quarter (October to December 2012) 
 

 
 

3.9 Overall figures show a reduction in short-term absences compared to 
last quarter.  The main absence reason remains as a result of sickness 
and diarrhoea and also seasonal related illness such as colds and 
infections which is to be expected during the winter months.  This is 
particularly evident in WRS as these teams were particularly effected by 
a number of seasonal viruses. 

 
3.10 In addition to the recent changes to the Sickness Absence Policy, staff 

and managers are able to meet with the Council Wellbeing Officer at one 
of the wellbeing Surgeries, held the last Tuesday of every month, to 
discuss any work related issues that affect wellbeing.  HR will also 
continue to provide support and guidance to assist the Council in 
absence and the promotion of Wellbeing amongst employees, including 
awareness on topics such as healthy eating, how to keep well in the 
winter months. 

 
Financial Implications 
 

3.11 The effective management of sickness absence is key in controlling the 
costs associated with sickness pay and service cover.  There are no 
other financial implications identified. 

Page 61



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Board 16th September 2013 
 

\\svsan008\moderngovdata\AgendaItemDocs\3\8\2\AI00014283\$mdrfirgm.doc/8.2.2013/LW 

 
 
Legal Implications 

 
3.12 There are no legal implications identified. 
 
 Service/Operational Implications 
 
3.13 The effective management of sickness absence is key to ensuring 

service delivery is maintained and associated operational issues are 
recognised and addressed.  There are no other service/operational 
implications identified. 

 
Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 
 

3.14 The effective management of sickness absence is key to maintaining 
high levels of customer service and should always be carried out in a fair 
and consistent manner.  There are no further customer, equalities and 
diversity implications identified. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

There are none identified. 
 
5. APPENDICES 
 

N/A 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Becky Talbot, Human Resources and Organisational Development 

Manager 
E Mail: becky.talbot@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext 3385. 
 
 

Page 62



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD  16th September  2013 

 
 
AIR QUALITY TASK GROUP 
  

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Kit Taylor 
 

Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes 

Relevant Head of Service for 
Overview and Scrutiny 

Claire Felton – Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services 

Wards Affected All 

Ward Councillor Consulted All Ward Councillors were invited to 
join the Task Group 

Non-Key Decision  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 To consider the findings and recommendations from the Scrutiny 

investigation undertaken by the Air Quality Task Group.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Members are requested to: 
 (a) consider and approve the report and the recommendations 
  attached at Appendix 1; and 
 (b) submit the report and recommendations to the Cabinet for 
  approval. 

  
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
 Financial Implications    

 
3.1 These are detailed within the attached report. 

 
 Legal Implications 

 
3.2 These are detailed within the attached report. 
 
 Service/Operation Implications 
 
3.3 Overview and scrutiny is a key part of the Council’s democratic 

decision making process and enables non-executive Members of the 
Council to put forward recommendations for policy development, policy 
review and service improvement. 

 
  

Agenda Item 9

Page 63



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD  16th September  2013 

 
 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.4 N/A 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 N/A 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
 Appendix 1 – Air Quality Task Group Report   
   
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
See attached report for details. 
 

7. KEY 
 
None 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Amanda Scarce – Democratic Services Officer 
E Mail: a.scarce@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: 01527 881443 

Page 64



 

  

Page 65



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



 

CONTENTS  
Page Number 

 

Foreword by the Chairman          1 
 
Summary of Recommendations         2 
 
Highlighted Areas         10 
 
Introduction/Background Information      11 
 
Chapter 1 – Review of the Air Quality Scrutiny Report (December 2007) 13 

 
Chapter 2 – The Role of Worcestershire Regulatory Services   17 
  
Chapter 3 – The Role of Worcestershire County Council   21  
 
Chapter 4 – Health Implications       23 
 
Chapter 5 – Conclusion        25  
 
Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference      27 
 
Appendix 2 – Recommendations from December 2007 as detailed in 
Recommendation 1 of this report.       30 
 
Appendix 3 – Response to the WRS Air Quality Action Plan Consultation 32 
       
Appendix 4 – Suggested wording for letters (Recommendations 10 & 11) 33 
 
Appendix 5 – Declarations of Interest      34 
   
Appendix 6 – Acknowledgements/Witnesses/Key Documents  36 
    
        
  

Page 67



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE TASK GROUP 
 

Councillor Sean Shannon (Chairman) 
Councillor Chris Bloore (withdrew) 

Councillor James Brogan 
Councillor Margaret Buxton 

Councillor Steve Colella 
Councillor Brian Cooper 

Councillor Keith Grant-Pearce (withdrew) 
Councillor Pete Lammas 
Councillor Luke Mallet 

Councillor Peter McDonald 
Councillor Chris Scurrell 

Councillor Les Turner 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING OFFICER DETAILS 
 

Amanda Scarce – Democratic Services Officer 
a.scarce@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Jess Bayley - Democratic Services Officer 

Jess.bayley@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 68



 

  

  - 1 - 

 
 
FOREWORD FROM THE CHAIRMAN 
  
“What is Air Quality?”  
 
Air quality generally refers to levels of pollution contained in the air that we 
breathe. Air quality falls when chemicals, particulates, or biological matter is 
present in the air.  This contamination can cause harm to humans and other 
species.  A range of illnesses have been linked to poor air quality these include 
respiratory, cancers, organ failures and brain damage. It is recognised that 
people who live in areas with poor air quality are prone to deteriorating health 
and a reduced life expectancy.  Poor air quality also damages the natural 
environment and contributes to the destruction of fragile ecosystems. It has been 
established that the principle source of pollution to the air in the four Air Quality 
Management Areas (AQMAs) around Bromsgrove district is from road transport 
emissions and this is exacerbated by congestion and traffic jams.   
 
Production of this report results from a comprehensive examination of evidence 
and data related to a complex subject matter. It has included interviews with 
experts from across the fields of science, medicine, planning, and transport 
infrastructure.  Members of the Task Group and the Democratic Service Officers 
have endeavoured to produce a report that will inform and influence those 
responsible for implementing measures to improve the air quality across the 
district.   
 
During the Task Group work timetable, a consensus of concern developed 
related to recommendations from the original 2007 report and subsequent review 
in 2009 not being actioned or implemented.  It is vitally important that the 
Overview and Scrutiny Board will be provided with regular progress reports from 
The Air Quality Steering Group, and that the Air Quality Action Plan be closely 
monitored on a regular basis. 
 
Finally, thanks go to the Task Group Members for their support, local knowledge 
and views together with Democratic Services Officers, Amanda Scarce and Jess 
Bayley for their organisational and research skills and keeping the Task Group on 
track. 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Sean Shannon 
Chairman of the Air Quality Task Group 

  

Page 69



 

  

  - 2 - 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services have considered the recommendations and 
commented on and provided estimates for, financial implications, resource 
implications and timescales. It should be noted that these are all based on the 
current proposed financial contribution from the Partner Authorities at this time.  
This is subject to change depending on budget and resource demand. 
 
CHAPTER 1 – Review of the Air Quality Scrutiny Report December 2007 
 
Recommendation 1 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
That further consideration be given to the 
implementation of the following approved 
recommendations, which remain 
outstanding, from the original report (full 
details are provided within the body of 
the report): 
 
Recommendation 1 – Low Emission 
Zones  
Further consideration be given for  LEZs 
to be  included within the Air Quality 
Action Plan. 
Recommendation 7 – Town Centre 
Redevelopment  
A representative from Worcestershire 
Regulatory Services to be included within 
the membership of the Town Centre 
Redevelopment Group. 
Recommendation 8 – High Street and 
The Strand 
Although not declared as an AQMA the 
continued monitoring of the air quality at 
Davenal House should take place and 
consideration be given to alterations to 
the traffic lights. 
Recommendation 17 – Taxi Rank 
Regular reminders to taxi drivers in 
respect of leaving their engines running 
whilst waiting for the next fare at a taxi 
rank. 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
[R1] Initial 
consideration 
estimated as 6 
months. Feasibility 
Study as 1 year 
and 
implementation is 
unquantifiable at 
this time.  
[R7] Unknown 
[R8] Unknown - 
Annual review of 
relevance. 
[R17] to be 
clarified by AQTG 

  

Page 70



 

  

  - 3 - 

Recommendation 1 (continued) 
 

  

Financial Implications 
[R1] Consideration initially is proposed to 
be covered by existing budgets 
(estimated as £1000)2.  A Feasibility 
Study would require Defra Grant 
application or Authority funding 
(estimated as greater than £100,000)1.  
[R7] None - Proposed to be covered by 
existing budgets.  
[R8] None - Proposed to be covered by 
existing budgets.   
[R17] None - Potentially included within 
existing WRS budgets. 
 
Resource Implications 
[R1] Officer resource (estimated as STO 
x 24 days and TSO x 12 days and 
preparation time) 
[R7] None - Officer resource (proposed 
to be covered by existing resource) 
[R8] None - Officer resource (proposed 
to be covered by existing resource)  
[R17] None – Officer resource (proposed 
to be covered by existing resource) 
 

  

 
 
  

Page 71



 

  

  - 4 - 

CHAPTER 2 – Worcestershire Regulatory Services 
 
Recommendation 2 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
(a) That separate Air Quality Action 

Plans be produced for the four 
AQMAs in Bromsgrove district in 
order to address the particular 
circumstances in each location. 

 
(b) That the Action Plans contain 

specific targets and detail 
projected timeframes and all 
actions should be implemented 
within those timescales. 

 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
(a) 6 months 
(b) After 2023 – 
dictated by 
estimate of 
timescale of 
measure that 
would take the 
longest to 
achieve. 

Financial Implications 
(a) WRS staff cost estimated as 

£9002 (cost incurred as 
Countywide AQAP already 
produced) 

(b) Proposed to be covered by  
existing budgets 
 

Resource Implications 
(a) WRS Officer resource (estimated 

as STO for 20 days and SP for 5 
days and additional costs) 

(b) WRS Officer resource (to be 
covered by existing Officer 
resource)   
 

 
  

Page 72



 

  

  - 5 - 

 
Recommendation 3 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
That a separate Air Quality Steering 
Group should be established in respect 
of the four AQMAs in Bromsgrove 
district. 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
After 2023 – 
dictated by 
estimate of 
timescale of 
measure that 
would take the 
longest to achieve. 

Financial Implications 
Annual cost of £2502 (cost incurred as 
this would be in addition to Group 
already proposed) 
 
Resource Implications 
WRS Officer resource (estimated as 
STO for 3 days per meeting twice a year 
and preparation costs) 
 
 
Recommendation 4 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Board be 
provided with regular progress reports 
from the Air Quality Steering Group. 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
Quarterly following 
the 
commencement of 
the Steering 
Group. Financial Implications 

None – Proposed to be covered by 
existing budgets with current proposals 
as Countywide Air Quality Action Plan 
Progress Report to be reported to Defra 
Annually. 
(if Bromsgrove specific Air Quality 
Steering Group) then additional cost of 
estimated £2502. 
 
Resource Implications 
None – if current proposal with WRS 
Officer time proposed to be covered by 
existing officer resource 
(if Bromsgrove specific Air Quality 
Steering Group then WRS Officer 
resource estimated as STO at 5 days 
and SP for 1 day annually and 
preparation costs.   
 
  

Page 73



 

  

  - 6 - 

 
Recommendation 5 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services 
(WRS) applies for funding from the 
DEFRA Air Quality Grant Programme. 
 
If the first application is not successful 
the WRS should persist in submitting 
further applications in subsequent years. 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
After 2023 – 
dictated by 
estimate of 
timescale of 
measure that 
would take the 
longest to achieve. 

Financial Implications 
None – proposed to be covered by 
existing budgets 
 
Resource Implications 
WRS Officer resource (proposed to be 
covered by existing resource) 
 
 
 
  

Page 74



 

  

  - 7 - 

CHAPTER 3 – The Role of Worcestershire County Council  
 
Recommendation 6 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
Worcestershire County Council applies 
for funding from the Worcestershire 
Local Transport Body in order to fund 
traffic management measures that will 
tackle air pollution in the Bromsgrove 
AQMAs. 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
As soon as 
possible/within 12 
months following 
completion of the 
Task Group. 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications for 
Bromsgrove District Council. 
 
Resource Implications 
There are no resource implications for 
Bromsgrove District Council. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 7 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
Worcestershire County Council liaises 
with local bus operators to establish a 
local bus quality partnership in order to 
investigate the potential to update the 
bus fleets operating within Bromsgrove 
District. 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
As soon as 
possible/within 12 
months following 
completion of the 
Task Group. 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications for 
Bromsgrove District Council. 
 
Resource Implications 
There are no resource implications for 
Bromsgrove District Council. 
 
 
 
  

Page 75



 

  

  - 8 - 

CHAPTER 4  – Health Implications 
 
Recommendation 8 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
That the health implications of air 
pollution be the focus of a detailed 
review by Worcestershire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(HOSC). 
 

 
Councillor 
Margaret 
Sherrey 

 
6 months from 
notification of the 
request. 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications for 
Bromsgrove District Council. 
 
Resource Implications 
There are no resource implications for 
Bromsgrove District Council. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 9 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
That the regular monitoring of particulate 
air pollutants within the Bromsgrove 
District’s four AQMAs is carried out by 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services. 
 

 
Councillors Kit 
Taylor/ Margaret 
Sherrey 

 
As soon as 
practicably 
possible once 
funding has been 
secured. 
 Financial Implications 

Estimated £50-75,000 for purchase and 
installation of Automatic Analyser, 
estimated £3-8,000 annual service and 
maintenance costs, estimated data 
management & QA/QC costs £5-10,000 
annually and estimated £2-3,000 annual 
cost of electricity/phone3. 
Estimated £5,0002 annual WRS staff and 
mileage costs to calibrate and maintain 
equipment. 
 
Resource Implications 
Estimated WRS Officer resource (TSO x 
3hrs a fortnight to calibrate and 20 miles 
@45p/mile each occasion). 
 
 
  

Page 76



 

  

  - 9 - 

CHAPTER 5 - Conclusion 
 
Recommendation 10 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
That Bromsgrove District Council sends 
a letter to the relevant Government 
Minister urging him/her to accelerate 
efforts to address problems with the 
higher emission levels from HGVs. 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
To be sent 
immediately 
following approval 
of the 
recommendation. 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications 
arising from this recommendation. 
 
Resource Implications 
There are no additional resource 
implications. 
 
Recommendation 11 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
That Bromsgrove District Council sends 
a letter to DEFRA urging it to review the 
role of those responsible for Air Quality. 
 

 
Councillor Kit 
Taylor 

 
To be sent 
immediately 
following approval 
of the 
recommendation. Financial Implications 

There are no financial implications 
arising from this recommendation. 
 
Resource Implications 
There are no additional resource 
implications. 
 
Recommendation 12 Portfolio 

Holder 
Completion Date 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board 
consider launching a separate review of 
CO2 emissions in the District. 
 

 
Councillor Mark 
Bullivant 

 
To be included 
within the work 
programme 
immediately 
following approval 
of the 
recommendation. 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications 
arising from this recommendation. 
 
Resource Implications 
There are no additional resource 
implications. 

Page 77



 

  

  - 10 - 

 
 
THE TASK GROUP WISH TO HIGHLIGHT THE FOLLOWING: 
 
The Task Group was aware that recommendations in respect of the 
following would not be appropriate; however, it would like to bring these to 
officers’ attention for further consideration. 
 

• The Task Group had considered recommendations in respect of a 
continuous slip road on the A38 north at Junction 1 of the M42 gyratory 
and part-time traffic lights also being introduced at this junction.  However, 
the advice received from WCC and WRS was contradictory in its nature 
and the Task Group therefore agreed it would not be appropriate for this to 
be included within its report.   

 
The Task Group would suggest that further consideration is given to this to clarify 
the position and the feasibility of the changes suggested. 
 

• The Task Group noted that there were other specific actions which, though 
potentially capable of addressing air quality issues in the district, may not 
be suitable as a recommendation.  This included the suggestion that signs 
could be installed at junctions in the four AQMAs urging drivers to turn off 
their engines at junctions and traffic lights in order to reduce air pollution in 
the vicinity.   

 
The Task Group would suggest that the Air Quality Steering Group give 
consideration to the feasibility of this suggestion.  

 

• During the course of its enquiries the Task Group were provided with 
information on the “Make Sundays Special” project which has been set up 
in Bristol by the current elected Mayor.  The vision of this was “to create a 
greener city that promotes and improves health and wellbeing of all its 
citizens”.  This involved a part of the city centre being closed to traffic one 
Sunday a month, two such events have already taken place and been 
hailed as a success. 

 
Whilst the Task Group appreciates that such a project would not be appropriate 
for Bromsgrove District it would suggest that consideration is given to this in other 
more suitable areas of the county, for example Worcester City. 

Page 78



 

  

  - 11 - 

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board received a presentation on the work of the 
Local Strategic Partnership at its meeting held on 22nd October 2012.  Following 
this presentation the Board agreed at its following meeting, in November 2012, to 
set up a Task Group which would investigate the air quality issues in the District 
including revisiting the Air Quality Scrutiny Report which was prepared in 
December 2007. 
 
Under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 local authorities have a statutory duty 
to undertake periodic reviews of ambient air quality within their boundaries.   The 
Council therefore has a statutory duty to review and assess air quality against 
national air quality standards and objectives.  If any air quality objective is not 
likely to be met an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) must be declared for 
the relevant pollutant. 
 
At the time of the original report being published there was one AQMA within 
Bromsgrove District.  Since that date a further 3 AQMAs have been declared.  It 
is these 4 AQMAs which the Task Group has focused its work on, together with 
measures which could be taken to generally improve air quality. 
 
For information the details of the AQMAs are: 
 
Lickey End, Bromsgrove 
 
Date of Detailed Assessment: January 2001 
Date of Declaration:   26th July 2001 
Date of Further Assessment: September 2002 
 
Redditch Road, Bromsgrove 
 
Date of Detailed Assessment: July 2009 
Date of Declaration:   17th February 2010 
Date of Further Assessment: March 2012 
 
Kidderminster Road, Hagley 
 
Date of Detailed Assessment: July 2009 
Date of Declaration:   17th February 2010 
Date of Further Assessment: March 2012 
 
Worcester Road, Bromsgrove 
 
Date of Detailed Assessment: July 2010 
Date of Declaration:   24th October 2011 
Date of Further Assessment: March 2012 
 

Page 79



 

  

  - 12 - 

The key objectives of the Task Group were to promote the understanding of air 
quality issues within the District, highlight progress being made by the Council 
and others to address the issue of poor air quality within the district and to make 
recommendations that would assist in making improvements to the environment 
and lives of residents. 
 
(Full details of the Terms of Reference are available at Appendix 1 of this report.) 
 
The Task Group has held a total of 13 meetings and interviewed numerous 
internal and external witnesses.  The Task Group has also considered written 
evidence from a number of sources and considered information provided by 
Parish Councils and residents.  The initial meeting of the Task Group took place 
on 4th December 2012 when Members considered the terms of reference and 
discussed in detail how it would carry out its investigation.  The penultimate 
meeting of the Task Group took place on 8th August 2013 when Members 
formulated the recommendations which are now outlined within this report and 
the final meeting took place on 22nd August 2013 to discuss the draft report 
before submitting it to the Overview and Scrutiny Board at its September 2013 
meeting. 
 

Page 80



 

  

  - 13 - 

CHAPTER 1 – REVIEW OF THE AIR QUALITY SCRUTINY 
REPORT DECEMBER 2007 
 
One of the main areas of investigation, detailed in the Task Group’s terms of 
reference, was to revisit the Air Quality Scrutiny Report prepared in 2007 (which 
had subsequently been reviewed in February 2009).  Officers were tasked with 
providing updates on the implementation of all the recommendations which had 
originally been agreed by Cabinet on 9th January 2008.  There had been 21 
recommendations in the report one of which was rejected.  At the review in 
February 2009 it was noted that 6 of the recommendations had been completed 
and no further work was required in respect of those, but the remaining 14 
recommendations were either partially implemented or required ongoing work.  
The aim of the review was to ascertain whether that ongoing work had continued.  
 
Officers were able to provide the Members with a comprehensive update on 
those 14 recommendations and following discussions Members requested that 
further action should be considered in respect of 3 of those recommendations, 
together with a refresh of a completed recommendation (No 8).  The detailed 
wordings of those recommendations are recorded in Appendix 2.  The reasoning 
behind the Task Group’s decision is detailed below: 
 
Recommendation 1 – Low Emission Zones (LEZs) 
 
Initially, the Cabinet resolved that this recommendation be deferred until further 
information was available regarding the results of the scheme which was shortly 
to be introduced in London.  However, Members of the former Scrutiny Steering 
Board questioned the decision and Cabinet reconsidered its response and in 
March 2008 agreed “that the relevant Portfolio Holder, in Conjunction with the 
Chairman of the Air Quality Task Group take the matter further with the 
appropriate officers at Worcestershire County Council (WCC).”  The February 
2009 update stated that the Executive Director, Partnerships and Projects had 
sent a letter to WCC’s Highways Unit in April 2008 asking them to explore 
designation of roads as Low Emission Zones (LEZs), various reminders had 
been sent but a response remained outstanding.  
 
When Officers reviewed this recommendation in January 2013 it appeared that 
this remained outstanding and the following response was received from WCC “a 
limited amount of investigation work had been done however to date there are no 
resources available to fund the required detailed technical work and design work 
involved.  Work will be required to understand what the impact on the wider 
highway network would be and to understand whether the introduction of a Low 
Emission Zone would achieve the required outcome.”   
 
A response was also received from the Senior Practitioner, Pollution at 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS), which stated “WRS were not 
involved in the previous work on this matter; however LEZs are something that 
will be included in the Action Plan.” 
 

Page 81



 

  

  - 14 - 

Upon receipt of the draft document for consultation, Air Quality Action Plan for 
Worcestershire, Members found that reference was made to LEZs.  Although it is 
made clear in the Action Plan that LEZs have significant financial implications, 
reference is made to an LEZ having a higher cost-benefit in large urban areas 
and where there are a number of AQMAs including Bromsgrove.  The Task 
Group therefore agreed that this should be given further consideration and 
supports the Air Quality Steering Group undertaking feasibility studies to assess 
whether LEZs would be a viable option in specific locations, as stated in the 
Action Plan. 
 
Recommendation 7 – Town Centre Redevelopment 
 
The Town Centre Redevelopment Steering Group (originally an LSP Theme 
Group) was requested to consider air pollution caused by traffic congestion when 
looking at redevelopment of the town.  In February 2009 it was understood that 
the recommendation had been implemented and work was continuing, with 
various proposals submitted for improvements to specific road junctions and 
proposed changes to filtering arrangements and traffic management. 
 
When Officers requested a further update in January 2013 the following 
responses were received; WCC “it has at WCC level and was considered when 
(the) application was submitted.  Subsequently a sum has been agreed between 
the developer and the local authorities as part of the process of the application.”   
WRS responded that “as WRS are not involved in either group, I can not 
comment further than saying that WRS are in communication with the policy and 
development control planners to make sure that air quality issues are high on 
their agenda.” 
 
The response received from WRS has led the Task Group to request that this 
recommendation be revisited and that a representative of WRS be included 
within the membership of the Town Centre Redevelopment Group. 
 
Recommendation 8 – High Street and The Strand 
 
Air Quality at this location was specifically mentioned as the original Task Group 
were informed that although it had not been declared as an AQMA, there were air 
quality issues in the vicinity of Davenal House,  Birmingham Road, Bromsgrove.  
The recommendation made specific reference to reviewing the timing of the 
traffic signals and the monitoring of air quality. 
 
The February 2009 update referred Members to the response in respect of 
recommendation 7 (as detailed above).  In January 2013 WRS responded 
“monitoring has been continuous at Davenal House since 2003.  Recent 
conversations with the Planning Team indicate that alterations to the traffic lights 
are planned but do not believe this has been undertaken at this time”. 
 
The Task Group therefore request that the monitoring continues and if alterations 
to the traffic lights are deemed necessary this matter is finally addressed. 

Page 82



 

  

  - 15 - 

 
Recommendation 17 – Taxi Rank 
 
The Licensing section was requested to remind taxi drivers not to leave their 
engines running whilst waiting for the next fare at a taxi rank, the incentive being 
it would save fuel and that it was an offence to leave a vehicle running when not 
in the vehicle and any person doing so was at risk of receiving a fixed penalty 
notice.  In February 2009 Members were informed that, as agreed, a newsletter 
incorporating this information had been sent to all taxi drivers and operators in 
February 2008. 
 
Officers passed on the following response from WRS to Members in respect of 
this recommendation as they were keen to ensure that the taxi drivers/operators 
received regular reminders in respect of this.  “Since the previous update, when a 
newsletter incorporating the message was sent to all taxi drivers and operators, 
there are no records that indicate the exercise has been repeated.  The feasibility 
and effect of adoption of the Road Traffic Act to restrict such activity would be 
considered as part of the Action Plan.” 
 
The Task Group agreed that a requirement for repeat action on this by Licensing 
should be incorporated within the Air Quality Action Plan and reference is made 
within the draft to cars being the biggest source of roadside pollutants within 
some areas.  It should also be stressed to the taxi operators/drivers that such 
action was an offence and that any person doing so was at risk of receiving a 
fixed penalty notice. 
 
It was noted that if this was to be included within the Action Plan it would need to 
be a general air pollution measure rather that specific to the AQMAs within 
Bromsgrove district as there are no taxi ranks within those AQMAs. 
 
The Task Group therefore recommends the following: 
 
Recommendation 1 
 
That further consideration be given to the implementation of the following approved 
recommendations, which remain outstanding, from the original report (full details are 
provided within the body of the report): 
 
Recommendation 1 – Low Emission Zones  
Further consideration be given for LEZs to be included within the Air Quality Action 
Plan. 
 
Recommendation 7 – Town Centre Redevelopment  
A representative from Worcestershire Regulatory Services to be included within the 
membership of the Town Centre Redevelopment Group. 
 
 
 

Page 83



 

  

  - 16 - 

 
Recommendation 8 – High Street and The Strand 
Although not declared as an AQMA the continued monitoring of the air quality at 
Davenal House should take place and consideration be given to alterations to the 
traffic lights. 
 
Recommendation 17 – Taxi Rank 
Regular reminders to taxi drivers in respect of leaving their engines running whilst 
waiting for the next fare at a taxi rank. 
 

 

  

Page 84



 

  

  - 17 - 

CHAPTER 2 – THE ROLE OF WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 
As one of the key outcomes of the Task Group’s terms of reference was to 
promote the understanding of air quality issues within the District Members 
agreed that it would be useful to ask residents for their views on air quality in 
general.  With this in mind a press release was issued on 12th December 2012 
asking residents to get in touch.  In total 7 responses were received, 
predominantly from residents within the Hagley area.  An email was also sent to 
all Parish Clerks asking for help by providing any information they had on the 
topic or if they were aware of any issues with air quality within their parish.  The 
Task Group received 3 responses to this request. 
 
The Task Group was also made aware of the Hagley Parish Air Quality Group 
who it was understood had carried out indepth investigations into air quality 
issues as there was an AQMA within the area and it had also carried out a local 
survey in respect of health problems residents suffered with air quality being the 
suspected cause (further details are provided within Chapter 4 of this report).  
Members of this group were invited to a meeting of the Task Group and provided 
details of their investigations and spoke at length of their concerns and discussed 
how they believed improvements to air quality could be made. 
 
As Worcestershire Regulatory Services was responsible for monitoring air quality 
throughout the District, the Task Group was provided with evidence, both written 
and verbally, from the Senior Practitioner, Pollution WRS.  Updates were 
provided in respect of those recommendations which had been approved and 
statistical information was provided in respect of the four AQMAs within the 
District.  The Task Group discussed in detail with the Senior Practitioner, 
Pollution WRS its concern that there had been very little, if any, improvement in 
the air quality of those AQMAs and that it appeared that little or no action was 
being taken to address this.  Three of the AQMAs had Action Plans in place 
which needed to be refreshed.  Members were informed that, as required under 
legislation, WRS was in the process of producing an Air Quality Action Plan 
which would cover AQMAs within the County of Worcestershire.  This was a total 
of 10 AQMAs (including the 4 within Bromsgrove) – 3 in Worcester City, 2 in 
Wyre Forest and 1 in Wychavon.  The Task Group’s initial reaction to the 
production of an overarching Action Plan was that each of the AQMAs would 
have very different needs and the document could become too big, impractical 
and difficult to use.  This view was also shared by the Hagley Parish Air Quality 
Group during their discussions with Members as it was felt that the 
circumstances varied so much between each AQMA. 
 
A Member of the Task Group informed it that during the previous 12 months he 
had been approached by WRS with a view to joining a Steering Group which he 
understood would contribute to the content of the Air Quality Action Plan.  It was 
confirmed by Officers that this was best practice and DEFRA guidelines suggest 
that “local authorities may wish to set up a steering group to take forward the 
development and implementation of an Action Plan.” It was also suggested that 

Page 85



 

  

  - 18 - 

the steering group could play a key role in formulating the annual Action Plan 
Progress Report.  The Task Group was therefore disappointed to be informed 
that the Steering Group would not be in place until after the Air Quality Action 
Plan had been agreed. 
 
The Senior Practitioner, Pollution WRS also provided the Task Group with 
general information about the role of WRS within the Planning process and the 
impact of developments of various types (including housing developments) on air 
quality and the advice that WRS would provide in order to mitigate any problems. 
 
The Air Quality Action Plan went out to consultation in April 2013 and the Task 
Group took the opportunity to review this in detail and fed back their comments to 
WRS (a copy of the content of that letter is attached at Appendix 3).  The Task 
Group Members agreed that the Action Plan was “unfocused” and did not have 
any real targets or timescales and that this was due to it covering 10 AQMAs all 
of which had very different needs.  Many of the actions detailed in the Action Plan 
were generic and the Task Group questioned how WRS could raise awareness 
of air quality in order to successfully implement changes as detailed in those 
generic actions and measure their effectiveness.  Members were also concerned 
that a large number of the actions would require a feasibility study before the 
cost, impact and effectiveness could be understood, so timescales and close 
monitoring would be imperative for these actions in order to ensure that those 
studies were carried out.  It was agreed that the Action Plan had very few targets 
or measures with which to monitor any improvements in air quality.  Both 
quantitative and qualitative targets and deadlines should be included in order to 
ensure that the Action Plan can be monitored to keep it “on track” or the 
appropriate officers held to account if this was not the case. 
 
As previously stated in Chapter 1 in respect of Low Emission Zones, the Task 
Group agreed that although it is made clear in the Action Plan that LEZs have 
significant financial implications, reference is made to an LEZ having a higher 
cost-benefit in large urban areas and where there are a number of AQMAs 
including Bromsgrove.  The Task Group supports the Air Quality Steering Group 
undertaking feasibility studies to assess whether LEZs would be a viable option 
in specific locations, as stated in the Action Plan and that these studies should be 
carried out as soon as possible for the Bromsgrove District. 
 
In respect of the forming of a single Steering Group, Members also raised 
concerns as they believed that this would be unmanageable due to the 
geographical area and the number of authorities involved.  The make up of such 
a Steering Group was also questioned, as again this could lead to difficulties in 
not only arranging convenient meetings but also in the number of people 
involved.   
 
The Task Group agreed that as Bromsgrove District had the largest number of 
AQMAs not only should it have separate Air Quality Action Plans but also a 
Steering Group which would be dedicated to implementation of that Action Plan.  
A Bromsgrove Air Quality Steering Group would be more familiar with local 

Page 86



 

  

  - 19 - 

circumstances and could make good use of local knowledge.  Again, this view 
was shared by the residents consulted by the Task Group during its 
investigations.    
 
When considering all the points included in this section of the report the Task 
Group agreed that it was important that the actions within the Plan were 
monitored and reported back to each authority to ensure that sight was not lost of 
the importance of the Action Plan and Air Quality generally.  In the case of 
Bromsgrove District Council the Task Group agreed that this could be done 
through regular updates being provided to the Overview and Scrutiny Board. 
 
The Task Group therefore recommends the following: 
 
Recommendation 2 
 

(a) That separate Air Quality Action Plans be produced for the four AQMAs in 
Bromsgrove district in order to address the particular circumstances in each 
location. 

(b) That the Action Plans contain specific targets and detail projected timeframes 
and all actions should be implemented within those timescales. 

 
 
 
Recommendation 3 
 
That a separate Air Quality Steering Group should be established in respect of the 
four AQMAs in Bromsgrove District. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 4 
 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Board be provided with regular progress reports 
from the Air Quality Steering Group. 
 

 
During the course of its investigations the Task Group’s attention was brought to 
various funding opportunities that were available to local authorities in respect of 
assistance in making improvements to air quality.  In particular, Members noted 
that Bromsgrove District Council was eligible to apply to the DEFRA Air Quality 
Grant Programme.  The aim of this programme was to support eligible capital 
expenditure by English local authorities on their air quality management duties 
under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995.  Whilst it was noted that applications 
for the 2013/14 funding had now closed, Members were keen for this opportunity 
of funding to be explored in future years.  The Task Group agreed that the 
feasibility studies needed in respect of Low Emission Zones and previously 
mentioned in Chapter 1, could be an ideal project to be carried out with the 
assistance of such funding. 

Page 87



 

  

  - 20 - 

 
The Task Group wished to stress the importance of accessing such grants in 
order to progress the improvement of air quality within the District as quickly and 
cost effectively as possible. 
 
(For information Worcester City, Wychavon and Wyre Forest Councils were also 
listed on the Eligibility and Criteria Assessment list provided by DEFRA.) 
 
WRS has confirmed that it proposes to apply for funding for specific measures as 
they are identified as relevant and appropriate and Defra advice would be sought 
on ensuring applications were considered as favourably as possible. 
 
The Task Group therefore recommends the following: 
 
Recommendation 5 
 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) applies for funding from the DEFRA Air 
Quality Grant Programme. 
 
If the first application is not successful the WRS should persist in submitting further 
applications in subsequent years. 
 
 
 
  

Page 88



 

  

  - 21 - 

CHAPTER 3 – THE ROLE OF WORCESTERSHIRE COUNTY 
COUNCIL 
 
As the Task Group’s investigations progressed it was apparent to it that many 
changes which needed to be made to improve air quality, not only in Bromsgrove 
District, but throughout the county, were reliant upon Worcestershire County 
Council (WCC).  Those changes also came at a financial cost, which the Task 
Group appreciated would be difficult for WCC to cover in the current economic 
climate.  However, after investigation the Members agreed that there were 
various options available to WCC which could be investigated in order to receive 
funding for particular projects.  By working in partnership there could also be 
opportunities to receive grants for example towards updating bus fleets. 
 
The Task Group understood that the Local Transport Boards (LTB) would provide 
funding for major transport schemes in local areas from April 2015.  Membership 
of the Board in Worcestershire and the local criteria for funding remained to be 
confirmed at the time of writing this report.  However, the confirmed allocated 
funding for the Worcestershire LTB was announced on 16th July 2013 and for the 
period 2015/16 to 2018/19 totalled £7.7million. There is no guarantee at this 
stage that the criteria would encompass a focus on air quality.  However, as a 
number of the actions listed in the Draft Air Quality Action Plan would require 
significant funding (for example the introduction of Low Emission Zones) funding 
from the LTB could potentially assist with a number of the actions listed.   
 
Reference throughout the investigations was made to public transport, not only to 
the service provided but also to the quality of the vehicles which were used.  It 
was acknowledged that the age of a vehicle could have a significant impact on 
the emissions which it produced, which in turn impacted on the air quality.  
During an interview with the Transport Planning Officer WCC the Task Group 
was informed that measures taken by WCC to address air quality issues included 
promoting sustainable travel; developing the cycle network, improvements to the 
local bus network and influencing travel behaviour, particularly with a view to 
encouraging greater use of public transport.  This view was also reiterated within 
the Draft Air Quality Action Plan when reference was made to Voluntary Bus 
Quality Partnerships, with a view, for example, to encouraging bus companies to 
improve emission performance of fleets through rolling vehicle replacement 
programmes and integrating bus services with rail networks and new 
developments.  
 
Voluntary Bus Quality Partnerships are informal agreements between relevant 
bus operators and local authorities that are not enshrined in legislation.  These 
partnerships are usually formed between a local authority and bus operator(s) 
and each party makes a commitment to improvements that will result in the 
enhancement of services within the area, whether it be through improvement to 
infrastructure or better vehicles. 
 
 
The Task Group therefore recommends the following: 

Page 89



 

  

  - 22 - 

 
Recommendation 6 
 
Worcestershire County Council applies for funding from the Worcestershire Local 
Transport Body in order to fund traffic management measures that will tackle air 
pollution in the Bromsgrove AQMAs. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 7 
 
Worcestershire County Council liaises with local bus operators to establish a local 
bus quality partnership in order to investigate the potential to update the bus fleets 
operating within Bromsgrove District. 
 

Page 90



 

  

  - 23 - 

CHAPTER 4 – HEALTH IMPLICATIONS  
 
During its investigations the original Task Group had, in December 2007, held the 
view that poor air quality could have serious effects on people’s health as it could 
trigger and exacerbate respiratory illnesses such as asthma.  The Task Group 
received information from both the World Health Organization (WHO) and Defra 
where air pollution had been cited as an environmental risk to human health.  In 
particular air pollution had been linked to respiratory illnesses and heart 
conditions. The current Task Group therefore requested current data from the 
Public Health Consultant, WCC in order to establish whether this was the case 
and whether there had been an increase within the district and in the AQMAs in 
particular. 
 
The Public Health Consultant attended as a witness and provided Members with 
a report which covered hospital admissions for respiratory illness, broken down 
into the 4 AQMAs and covering 3 x 3 year periods (2004/05 – 2006/07, 2007/08 – 
2009/10 and 2010/11 – 2012/13, together with average comparisons for both 
Bromsgrove and Worcestershire.  This information was also broken down into 
specific Electoral Ward areas.  It was noted that very few of the relevant Electoral 
Ward areas had higher admission rates than the Worcestershire average, the 
only exception being St Johns which fell within the Worcester Road AQMA and 
Charford which had postcodes which fell into both Worcester Road and Redditch 
Road AQMAs.  However, Members were informed that caution needed to be 
taken as there could be a number of reasons as to why the respiratory disease 
admission rates were higher for example in areas of deprivation and lifestyle 
choices. 
 
Although Members accepted that the evidence did not support their concerns 
they agreed that, as there were 4 AQMAs within Bromsgrove District and 10 
throughout Worcestershire, it would be useful for a more in depth study to be 
carried out by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  The Public Health Consultant 
informed Members that the Health and Wellbeing Board had consulted last year 
on priorities for the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and air quality was not 
highlighted as an issue. 
 
A Task Group meeting was also attended by representatives (a GP, a Parish 
Councillor and a local resident) from the Hagley Parish Air Quality Group and the 
Hagley Action Group, who had carried out a health survey in response to worries 
from some residents (around 4,000 homes had received “door stop” visits, the 
findings of which led to the survey) who were concerned about the effects of the 
AQMA on themselves and their children.  The health survey was a study of 182 
respondents based within the Hagley AQMA and the questions ranged from the 
types of symptoms suffered to how long the resident had lived in the area and 
whether they were smokers. The Group had carried out a great deal of research 
and had spoken to a health expert on air pollution at Kings College, London.  
Members were provided with a copy of that survey and a summary of the 
responses received.  The representatives spoken about their concerns, the 

Page 91



 

  

  - 24 - 

potential worsening of the air quality and measures that they felt could lead to 
improvements.  
 
Although accepting of the information provided by the Public Health Consultant, 
the Task Group agreed that the subject continued to be of concern to both 
Members and residents living in the vicinity of an AQMA.  The Council’s 
representative on the Worcestershire Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
(HOSC), also a Member of the Task Group, suggested approaching HOSC 
requesting that it carry out a detailed review, particularly in light of further 
information which had been provided.  This information was in respect of new 
evidence, which had recently been in the news and referred to two papers 
published by the Lancet which made reference to a link between levels of air 
pollution (particulates, sulphur dioxide, carbon monoxide and nitrogen dioxide) 
and hospitalization and death in patients with chronic heart failure. The units 
used for the levels of nitrogen dioxide in the paper were different from those used 
in Worcestershire so direct comparison with the data that had been provided 
would need expert interpretation.  The second paper showed a significant 
association between exposure to particulates and the risk for adenocarcinoma of 
the lung (this is not the type of lung cancer associated with smoking) in European 
populations.  Unfortunately the Task Group believed that the levels of particulates 
in the Council’s AQMAs were not recorded and therefore it was not currently 
possible to check the levels. 
 
It is appreciated by the Task Group Members that the cost of monitoring 
particulate air pollutants would be costly; however this could be a specific 
measure to which WRS could apply for funding as detailed in Recommendation 5 
of Chapter 2 to this report. 
 
The Task Group therefore recommends the following: 
 
Recommendation 8 
 
That the health implications of air pollution be the focus of a detailed review by 
Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC). 
 

 
Recommendation 9 
 
That the regular monitoring of particulate air pollutants within the Bromsgrove 
District’s four AQMAs is carried out by Worcestershire Regulatory Services. 
 
  

Page 92



 

  

  - 25 - 

CHAPTER 5 - CONCLUSION 
 
Upon conclusion of its investigations there were two issues which were apparent 
to Members, both of which were outside of the Council’s control and which could 
make a significant impact on air quality; these were pollution from HGVs and a 
clearer steer on responsibility for air quality within the District in order for actions 
to be taken to make improvements. 
 
Whilst it was acknowledged that Air Quality was a worldwide problem and that 
although Bromsgrove had four Air Quality Management Areas, the largest 
number in Worcestershire, the Council was limited in the way it could make 
improvements.  The Task Group agreed that this should not deter the Council 
from taking whatever actions it could to either make changes and/or raise 
awareness of the issue and its causes.   It was understood that pollution from 
vehicles was a major contributor, in particular from HGVs, which had an impact 
on the District due to the road network, any changes to which were unfortunately 
outside of the Council’s control.  Whilst significant improvements to motor vehicle 
engines have been made in recent years and which have led to reduced 
emission levels, HGV improvements were long overdue.  Members considered 
the best way in which to support and encourage such and it was agreed that the 
Council should write to the appropriate Government Minister requesting action be 
taken on this issue.   
 
Throughout its investigations it was also apparent to the Task Group that, 
although the Council was responsible for air quality and the action plan in respect 
of Air Quality Management Areas, much of the work to address the problem was 
outside of the Council’s control, thus making it difficult to implement changes, for 
example in respect of highways issues and improvements.  It was clear from the 
evidence received that there was no “joined up” working on this subject and 
neither the Council nor Worcestershire County Council was able to take the lead 
role.  Within the Draft Air Quality Action Plan it was in fact stated that “It is 
generally recognised that although a Local Authority has the responsibility of 
managing the air quality in their areas they are unlikely to have direct control or 
capability to effect real reductions in pollution levels.”�  During an interview with 
the Senior Practitioner, Pollution at WRS the Task Group was informed that this 
was something which Defra would be reviewing and it was anticipated that more 
defined guidelines would be published.  The Senior Practitioner, Pollution was 
however unable to confirm a timescale for this review. 
 
It should also be noted that whilst under legislation, the Council was responsible 
for producing an Air Quality Action Plan for each Air Quality Management Area, 
there was no legal requirement to implement the Action Plan. 
 
 
The Task Group therefore recommends the following: 
  

Page 93



 

  

  - 26 - 

 
Recommendation 10 
 
That Bromsgrove District Council sends a letter to the relevant Government Minister 
urging him/her to accelerate efforts to address problems with the higher emission 
levels from HGVs with a copy of the letter also being sent to the local M.P.(See 
Appendix 4 for suggested wording). 
 
 
Recommendation 11 
 
That Bromsgrove District Council sends a letter to the relevant Government Minister 
responsible for DEFRA urging him/her to review the role of those responsible for Air 
Quality with a copy of the letter also being sent to the local M.P.  (See Appendix 4 for 
suggested wording). 
 
 
 
Finally, at an early stage within the investigation it became apparent to Members 
that the scope of the Task Group was large and it would be difficult to complete 
within the timescale allocated.   At the meeting held on 9th January 2013 the 
Climate Change Manager raised concerns that consideration of information about 
CO2 Emissions alongside data on the subject of air quality would be distracting 
and would require Members to dedicate a much longer timescale to complete the 
review. After discussions it was therefore agreed that the Task Group would 
concentrate on reviewing Air Quality with a recommendation that an investigation 
into CO2 Emissions be included within the Overview & Scrutiny Board’s Work 
Programme.  The Task Group’s terms of reference were amended and the Board 
informed at the meeting held on 25th February 2013. 
 
The Task Group therefore recommends the following: 
 
Recommendation 12 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board consider launching a separate review of CO2 

emissions in the District. 
 

Page 94



 

  

  - 27 - 

 Appendix 1 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY EXERCISE SCOPING CHECKLIST 
 

This form is to assist Members to scope the overview and scrutiny exercise in a 
focused way and to identify the key issues it wishes to investigate. 

 

 

� Topic:  
 
 

� Specific subject areas to be investigated: 

 
� Possible key outcomes: 
 
 

(i.e. please state what Members hope to achieve through this investigation): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� Should the relevant Portfolio Holder(s) be invited to give evidence?   ��� 
 
� Which officers should be invited to give evidence?  
 

(Please state name of officer and/or job title) 

 

 
 

 

 

Head of Regulatory Services, Head of Environmental Services 
Environmental Health Team Representative  
Climate Change Manager 
Relevant Portfolio Holder 
Relevant Ward Members 
Parish Councillors 
�

Air Quality Task Group 

• Promote the understanding of air quality issues within the district. 

• Highlight progress being made by the Council and others to address the issues 
of poor air quality within the district. 

• Make recommendations which would assist in making improvements to the 
environment and lives of residents within the district. 

To revisit the Air Quality Scrutiny report prepared in December 2007.  This will include: 

• Investigating whether the recommendations have been implemented 
successfully. 

• The effect of poor air quality on residents within the District 

• Progress made to date in improving air quality in the District. 

• Future plans to improve air quality in the District. 
 
�

Page 95



 

  

  - 28 - 

 
 
 
� Should any external witnesses be invited to give evidence?   ��� 
 

If so, who and from which organisations? 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

� What key documents/data/reports will be required? 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
� Is it anticipated that any site visits will be required?     ����� 
 

If so, where should members visit? 

 

 

 
� Should a period of public consultation form part of the exercise?   �� 
 

If so, on what should the public be consulted? 

 

 

 

(Please Note: A separate press release requesting general 
comments/suggestions from the public will be issued in the normal way at the 
beginning of the investigation.) 

 
� Have other authorities carried out similar overview and scrutiny exercises?  

��� 
 

If so, which authorities? 

 

Representatives from: 
Highways Agency, Worcestershire County Council’s Transport Team, Worcestershire 
Acute Health Trust. 
�

�

Air Quality Scrutiny Report (December 2007) 
Air Quality a Strategy for Hereford and Worcestershire (November 2008) 
Air Quality Progress Report 2010: Bromsgrove District Council (May 2010) 
WCC Transport & Air Quality Policy 
Health Profile for Bromsgrove district 
�

�

�

�

Not that we are aware of. 
�

Possibly – may become more apparent as the investigation is carried out. 
�

Page 96



 

  

  - 29 - 

 
 

� Will the investigation cross the District boundary?    ��� 
 

If so, should any other authorities be invited to participate?  ����

If yes, please state which authorities: 

 

 

� Would it be appropriate to co-opt anyone on to the Task Group/Board whilst 
the Overview and Scrutiny exercise is being carried out?    ��� 

 

If so, who and from which organisations? 

 

 

 

 

� What do you anticipate the timetable will be for the Overview and Scrutiny 
exercise? 

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

�

�

�

It is anticipated that this review could be completed in a maximum of five months with a 
draft report being presented to the Board meeting to be held on 17th June 2013. 
�

Page 97



 

  

  - 30 - 

Appendix 2 
 

FULL WORDING OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM DECEMBER 2007 
 
AS DETAILED IN RECOMMENDATION 1 OF THIS REPORT 
 
 
Recommendation 1 – Low Emission Zones 
 
This Council considers applying to Worcestershire County Council for certain 
roads to be made low emission zone roads therefore limiting access to certain 
types of vehicles which reduce air quality.  Specifically, the Task Group believe 
the following roads/areas should be low emission due to high NO2 levels: 
 

• Approximately a 2 mile radius around Bromgrove town centre 

• A38 Bypass in Rubery 

• All roads in Rubery with a weight restriction 

• A456 in Hagley 

• A491 in Hagley 
 
Recommendation 7 – Town Centre Redevelopment  
 
The Town Centre Redevelopment Steering Group (LSP Theme Group) be 
requested to consider air pollution caused by traffic congestion when looking at 
redeveloping the town.  This would include the Group looking at the possibilities 
of having vehicle access to The Strand from Birmingham Road (by Davenal 
House) and investigate, in partnership with Worcestershire County Council 
Highway’s, whether or not it might help decrease traffic congestion and therefore 
lower the air pollution at this location which has high NO2 levels. 
 
Recommendation 8 – High Street and The Strand 
 
(a) Request that Worcestershire County Council review the timing of the traffic 

signals located at the top end of the High Street by The Strand with a view 
to reducing the build up of standing traffic;  

(b) If (a) is agreed and County Council decide to amend the timing of the 
traffic signals, request that they monitor the traffic congestion before and 
after making the alteration to measure whether the action has had a 
positive impact; and 

(c) If (a) is agreed, request Environmental Health monitor air quality around 
Davenal House, Birmingham Road before and after the alteration to 
measure whether it has helped improve air quality (which is known to be 
poor at this location). 

  

Page 98



 

  

  - 31 - 

 
Recommendation 17 – Taxi Rank 

 
The Licensing Section be requested to remind taxi drivers not to leave their 
engines running whilst waiting for the next fare at a taxi rank.  As an incentive to 
change their behaviour, it should be pointed out that (a) it will save fuel; and (b) it 
is an offence to leave a vehicle running when not in the vehicle and any person 
doing so is at risk of receiving a fixed penalty notice.  This information could be 
included in a newsletter for example. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 99



 

  

  - 32 - 

Appendix 3 
 
Response  from Task Group to WRS Air Quality Action Plan Consultation 
27th June 2013 
 
I have been asked to respond to the Air Quality Action Plan consultation on 
behalf of the Air Quality Task Group which has been set up by the Overview & 
Scrutiny Board at Bromsgrove District Council.  Where an AQMA is in a specific 
Ward the relevant Councillor will also respond to the consultation individually. 
 
The Task Group has held discussions with Mark Cox – Senior Practitioner, 
Pollution WRS and Andy Ferguson, Central Operations Team Manager, WRS 
and has expressed its concern over a number of issues in respect of air quality in 
Bromsgrove District.  Some of the areas that have been discussed are detailed 
below, together with other areas the Task Group has considered at its meetings: 
 

• Little or no improvement to air quality appears to have been made since 
the implementation of three of the AQMAs (and Action Plans) in 
Bromsgrove. 

• That although actions were being taken these appeared not to be actually 
addressing the problem, only mitigating its effects. 

• That the Action Plan previously developed for the AQMAs in the District 
did not result in tangible improvements in those areas and the concern is 
that this will be the case with the latest action plan. 

• That air quality did not appear to be a priority in respect of strategic 
planning, planning applications and the town centre regeneration 
programme. 

• Improvements to public transport, including its availability and the types of 
vehicles used. 

• Members believe the action plan is “unfocused” and does not have any 
targets or timescales.  This is due to it covering 10 AQMAs all of which 
have different needs.  This should have been broken down into more 
specific areas and as Bromsgrove has the greatest number then it may 
have been more appropriate for it to have a separate Action Plan. 

• How WRS could raise awareness of air quality and the successful 
implementation of changes as detailed in the generic actions and the 
effectiveness of those actions. 

• Clarification on whether the Steering Group is a single steering group for 
all 10 Worcestershire AQMAs? If so, Members believe that this would be 
unmanageable due to the geographical area and as Bromsgrove has the 
largest number of AQMAs it would be appropriate for a Steering Group to 
be set up specifically for the District. 

• Why the decision has been made to form a steering group after the Action 
Plan consultation rather than before and therefore allowing the group to 
assist with the development of it. 

Page 100



 

  

  - 33 - 

Appendix 4 
 

Recommendation 10 - Suggested Wording for Transport Minister Letter  
 
 
Bromsgrove District Council holds the unfortunate position of being responsible 
for four Air Quality Management Areas.  Following the completion of its 
investigations, the Overview and Scrutiny Board Air Quality Task Group, which 
was set up to investigate the effect of poor air quality on residents and actions 
which the Council could take to improve air quality, has brought to the Council’s 
attention information which shows that HGVs are the largest source of pollution 
within one of these AQMAs.   
 
Whilst excellent progress has been made in the manufacture and use of cleaner 
motor vehicles, HGVs are sadly falling behind with this development.  The 
Council therefore urges you to take action in order to ensure that this problem is 
addressed at a national level.  The Council would also urge you to investigate 
actions that could be taken to enable more large vehicles to be fuelled by 
alternative fuels such as methane. 
 
In a report commissioned by the Road Transport Association (RTA) it states that 
operators of national heavy goods vehicle fleets are considering wider use of 
natural gas powered vehicles to help achieve operational efficiencies and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions, in order to provide the necessary confidence in 
making these investments Government need to support the development of 
national refueling infrastructure, provide stability in future duty rates for road gas 
fuel and work with vehicle operators to understand the barriers to wider uptake 
and work with the operators to remove those barriers.  This Council supports the 
RTA in this request and would ask that the Government not introduce punitive tax 
measures and encourage RTA members to switch to cleaner fuels. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 101



 

  

  - 34 - 

 
 
Recommendation 11 – Suggested Wording for Defra  Letter 
 
Bromsgrove District Council holds the unfortunate position of being responsible 
for four Air Quality Management Areas.  Following the completion of its 
investigations, the Overview and Scrutiny Board Air Quality Task Group, which 
was set up to investigate the effect of poor air quality on residents and actions 
which the Council could take to improve air quality, has brought to the Council’s 
attention the need for further clarification to be provided on responsibility for 
tackling air quality. 

 

Following the findings of this investigation the Council would urge DEFRA to 
review its guidelines in respect of the lead authority for air quality as it has 
become apparent to this Council that although it is responsible for air quality the 
majority of actions which need to be put in place to make improvements to this 
come under the remit of the County Council, thus limiting the actions that this 
Council can take to make improvements.  A clearer steer on the role of the lead 
authority, which this Council strongly believes should be the County Council,  for 
air quality would enable work to be carried forward more effectively and ensure 
that appropriate action is taken where necessary. 
  

Page 102



 

  

  - 35 - 

Appendix 5 
 

 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 
As there was an Air Quality Management Area in the ward of the majority of 
Members of the Task Group it was agreed that it was not necessary to declare 
this as an interest at the meetings. 
 
The following interest was also declared during the Task Group’s investigation: 

 
Councillor 

 
Interest Declared 

Councillor L. Mallett 
 
(Pecuniary disclosable interest)  
 

Employed by the British Heart 
Foundation. 
 
(The British Heart Foundation had 
provided funding for research, the 
details of which were provided to 
Members at the meeting held on18th 
July and further discussed on 8th 
August 2013.) 

Councillors S. Colella, L. Mallett and S. 
Shannon 

Wished it to be noted that they had 
already approached WRS with a view 
to joining the Air Quality Steering 
Group.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 103



 

  

  - 36 - 

Appendix 6 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
The Task Group wishes to thank the Democratic Services Officers, Amanda 
Scarce and Jess Bayley for their support throughout the Task Group’s 
investigations. 
 
Thanks also go to all those Ward Councillors, Parish Councils and residents who 
took the time to respond to requests for information. 
 
WITNESSES 
 
The Task Group considered evidence from the following sources before making 
its recommendations: 
 
Internal Witnesses: 
 
Ruth Bamford – Head of Planning and Regeneration 
Mike Dunphy – Strategic Planning Manager 
Ceridwen John – Climate Change Manager 
 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services: 
Mark Cox – Senior Practitioner (Pollution) 
Andy Ferguson – Central Operations Team Manager 
 
Councillors: 
Councillor Kit Taylor – Portfolio Holder for Planning, Core Strategy & Regulatory 
Services 
 
External Witnesses: 
 
Liz Altay – Public Health Consultant, Worcestershire County Council 
David Balme – Transport Planning Officer, Worcestershire County Council 
Steve Harrison – Transport Strategy & Policy Team Leader,  

Worcestershire County Council 
Sally Everest – Network Control Manager, Worcestershire County Council 
Representatives from Hagley Parish Air Quality Group (Dr. Steve Pannell,  

Fran Evans, Parish Councillor Paul Johnson) 
 
KEY DOCUMENTS 
 
Air Quality Scrutiny Report December 2007 
Overview Board – Air Quality Review February 2009 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services Air Quality Action Plan for Worcestershire 
(Draft Document for Consultation April 2013) 
DEFRA Local Air Quality Management Guidance February 2009 

Page 104



 

  

  - 37 - 

 
 
  

Page 105



 

  

  - 38 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services 
Bromsgrove District Council, The Council House, Burcot Lane, 

Bromsgrove, Worcestershire B60 1AA 
Telephone: 901527) 881288 

Email: scrutiny@bromsgrove.gov.uk 

Page 106



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 16th September 2013 
 
ATRIX OUTREACH WORK TASK GROUP 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor M. J. A. Webb 

Portfolio Holder Consulted   Not at this stage 

Relevant Head of Service John Godwin – Head of Leisure and 
Cultural Services 

Wards Affected  All 

Ward Councillor Consulted Not at this stage 

Non-Key Decision  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 At the previous meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 

15th July 2013, the Artrix Outreach Work Task Group was established, 
with Councillor S. P. Shannon being appointed as Chairman. 
 

1.2 As agreed Members (with the exception of Members of the Cabinet 
and members of the Artrix Operating Board) were contacted, 
requesting that anyone who had an interest in becoming a Member of 
the Task Group contact the relevant officer within a set timescale. 

 
1.3 Group Leaders were also informed of the establishment of the new 

Task Group. 
 
1.4 Nine Councillors have shown an interest in joining the Task Group.  

The Overview and Scrutiny Board Inquiry/Task Group Guidelines 
(approved by the Board at its meeting held on 1st March 2011) 
recommend that task groups must be at least 4 but no more than 7 
Members (including the Chairman).  It is at the Board’s discretion as to 
whether the nine Councillors who have shown interest in the Task 
Group are appointed Members or alternatively, agree which of the 
following Members be appointed:- 

 
Councillors B. T. Cooper, R. J. Deeming, S. J. Dudley, P. M. 
McDonald, L. C. R. Mallett, E. M. Shannon, R. J. Shannon, C. R. 
Scurrell and P. J. Whittaker. 
 

1.5 Members should note that Members of a Task Group receive a single 
payment of £126, whilst the Chairman of a Task Group receives a 
single payment of £252.  This would give a total cost of £1,386. 
 

1.6 Members are requested to consider in detail the terms of reference 
(see Appendix 1 ‘specific subject areas to be investigated’) so as to 
ensure the Board is clear as to what they expect the Task Group to 
achieve.  The Board can make amendments to the terms of reference if 
it wishes.  Please note that the Task Group members, at the first 
meeting, will also be given the opportunity to discuss the terms of 

Agenda Item 10

Page 107



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 16th September 2013 
 

reference.  However, should they wish to make any significant 
changes, this would first need to be approved by the Board. 

 
1.7 Members are reminded that when setting a timescale for a Task Group, 

it is usually expected that a Task Group will conclude its investigations 
within four to six months from the date of the first Task Group meeting.  
However, the Board can decide that certain topics require more time to 
ensure complex issues are properly scrutinised. 

 
1.8 It is vital that appropriate officer support is provided to help ensure an 

effective investigation is undertaken leading to strong 
recommendations.  Taking this into consideration, it is suggested that 
the Task Group commences its investigation as soon as officer support 
is available. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Members are requested to: 
 
(a) consider and agree the membership of the Task Group 
(b) consider and agree the terms of reference of the Artrix 

Outreach Work Task Group (see attached Overview and 
Scrutiny Exercise Scoping Checklist at Appendix 1); 

(c) decide upon the length of time the Task Group will have to 
carry out its investigations (Task Groups are normally 
expected to conclude their investigations within six months 
from the date of the first meeting); and 

(d) request the Task Group to commence its investigation as 
soon as possible. 

  
 

3. KEY ISSUES 
 

 Financial Implications    
 

3.1 There are no financial implications directly relating to this report. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2 There are no legal implications directly relating to this report. 
  
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
3.3 None for the purpose of this report. 

 
  

Page 108



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 16th September 2013 
 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.4 There are no implications directly relating to customer/equality and 

diversity within this report. 
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT    
 

4.1 None for the purpose of this report. 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 

 Appendix 1 – Overview and Scrutiny Exercise Scoping Checklist. (TO 
FOLLOW) 

  
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 
 

7. KEY 
 
None 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Amanda Scarce – Democratic Services Officer 
E Mail: a.scarce@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: 01527 881443 

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 L
E

A
D

E
R

’S
 

 

W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

 
1

 O
C

T
O

B
E

R
  
2

0
1

3
 T

O
 3

1
 J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 2
0

1
4
 

 
(p

u
b

li
s

h
e

d
 a

s
 a

t 
3

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
 

 
T

h
is

 W
o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 g

iv
e

s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
it
e
m

s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

in
g
 f

o
u

r 
m

o
n

th
s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
 

(N
B

: 
 T

h
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 o

c
c
a

s
io

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
 m

a
y
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
 f

in
a

l 
d
e

c
is

io
n

. 
 E

.g
. 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 a
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

y
 o

r 
v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e
t.

) 
 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t’
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 l
is

te
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 m
e

d
ia

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 
a

tt
e
n

d
, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
ly

 b
e

 s
o
m

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l,
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

lly
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

e
 o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
..

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 

c
a

lle
d

 e
x
e

m
p

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 m
e

d
ia

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o

 l
e

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

h
e

n
 s

u
c
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
. 

 
If

 a
n
 i
te

m
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 c
o
n

ta
in

 e
x
e

m
p

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

e
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
is

 o
n
 t

h
e
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 Y
o
u

 c
a

n
 m

a
k
e

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 u
s
 i
f 

y
o

u
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

a
n
 i
te

m
 o

r 
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
 l
is

te
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 o
p
e

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

. 

Agenda Item 13

Page 111



 
T

h
e

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 g

iv
e

s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
it
e
m

s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

a
b

in
e

t,
 o

r 
fu

ll 
C

o
u
n

c
il,

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 f

o
u

r 
m

o
n
th

s
. 

 K
e

y
 D

e
c

is
io

n
s

 a
re

 t
h

o
s
e

 e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

: 
 (i
) 

re
s
u

lt
 
in

 
th

e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
c
u

rr
in

g
 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
, 

fo
re

g
o

in
g
 
in

c
o

m
e

 o
r 

th
e

 
m

a
k
in

g
 
o
f 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 
in

 
e

x
c
e

s
s
 
o

f 
£

5
0

,0
0
0

 
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 
a

re
 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 b

u
d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
r 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

la
te

s
; 

o
r 

 (i
i)

 
b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
it
s
 e

ff
e

c
t 
o

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 l
iv

in
g
 o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 a
n

 a
re

a
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t

w
o

 o
r 

m
o

re
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
is

tr
ic

t;
  

 K
e

y
 D

e
c

is
io

n
s

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 

1
. 

A
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i

n
 a

n
y
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
s
a

v
in

g
 b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

f 
£
5

0
,0

0
0
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h
e

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
s
a

v
in

g
 i
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e

rm
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n

. 
  

 
2

. 
A

 v
ir
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
n

y
 a

m
o
u

n
t 
e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g
 £

5
0

,0
0

0
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
t 

is
 w

it
h

in
 a

n
y
 v

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

lim
it
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il;

 
 

3
. 

A
n

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 d
is

p
o

s
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
s
s
e

t 
w

it
h

 a
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
5

0
,0

0
0

 o
r 

m
o

re
 o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

th
e

rw
is

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r;

 
 4

. 
A

n
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 c
e

a
s
e
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 (
o

th
e

r 
th

a
n
 a

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

f 
n

o
t 
m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 6

 m
o
n

th
s
).

 
 5

. 
A

n
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

te
 f
o

r 
o

r 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
n

y
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p

. 
 T

h
e

 W
o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
 f

re
e

 o
f 

c
h
a

rg
e

 a
t 

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
e

, 
B

u
rc

o
t 

L
a

n
e

, 
B

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e

, 
B

6
0

 1
A

A
 f

ro
m

 9
a
m

 t
o

 5
p

m
  

M
o

n
d

a
y
s
 t

o
 F

ri
d

a
y
s
; 

o
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

-s
it
e

 (
w

w
w

.b
ro

m
s
g
ro

v
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 If
 y

o
u

 w
is

h
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 y
o
u

 a
re

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t

o
 g

e
t 

in
 t

o
u

c
h

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

 a
u
th

o
r 

a
s
 s

o
o
n

 a
s
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n

. 
 C

o
n

ta
c
t 

d
e

ta
ils

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

  
A

lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e

ly
, 

y
o

u
 m

a
y
 w

ri
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
L
e

g
a

l,
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
e
, 

B
u

rc
o

t 
L
a

n
e
, 

B
ro

m
s
g
ro

v
e

, 
B

6
0

 1
A

A
 o

r 
e

-m
a

il:
 d

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
@

b
ro

m
s
g
ro

v
e

a
n

d
re

d
d

it
c
h

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 T
h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t’
s
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 h
e

ld
 e

v
e

ry
 f

o
u

r 
w

e
e

k
s
 a

t 
6

p
m

 o
n

 W
e
d
n

e
s
d
a

y
 e

v
e

n
in

g
s
 a

t 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
e

. 
 T

h
e

y
 a

re
 o

p
e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
, 

e
x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
n

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n
ti
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
. 

 I
f 

y
o

u
 w

is
h

 t
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
 f

o
r 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

m
a
tt

e
r,

 i
t 

is
 a

d
v
is

a
b

le
 t

o
 c

h
e

c
k
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

e
a
m

 o
n

 (
0

1
5

2
7

 8
8
1

4
0
9

 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 s

u
re

 i
t 

is
 g

o
in

g
 a

h
e

a
d

 a
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d
. 

 I
f 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

y
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 h
a

p
p

y
 

to
 a

d
v
is

e
 y

o
u

. 
T

h
e

 f
u

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
e

e
ts

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 C
a

le
n
d

a
r 

o
f 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
. 

 M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e

 a
t 

6
p

m
. 

Page 112



 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
  

 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

R
. 

H
o

lli
n

g
w

o
rt

h
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o

ld
e

r 
fo

r 
F

in
a

n
c
e

, 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

n
d
 E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
rs

. 
M

. 
A

. 
S

h
e

rr
e

y
 

D
e

p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
 H

o
ld

e
r 

fo
r 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
. 

J
. 

A
. 
W

e
b

b
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 H

o
ld

e
r 

fo
r 

L
e

is
u

re
, 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

D
r.

 D
. 
W

. 
P

. 
B

o
o

th
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 H

o
ld

e
r 

fo
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
, 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 I

C
T

) 
w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 S

p
e

c
ia

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

C
. 

B
. 
T

a
y
lo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o

ld
e

r 
fo

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
. 

A
. 
B

u
lli

v
a

n
t 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 

H
o

ld
e

r 
fo

r 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

L
e

g
a
l,
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
, 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 H
u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

   Page 113



 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

 W
h

e
th

e
r 

it
 i
s

 a
 K

e
y
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

  

D
e

c
is

io
n

 T
a

k
e
r 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 D
e

ta
il
s

 o
f 

E
x

e
m

p
t 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 (

if
 

a
n

y
) 

D
a

te
 o

f 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 M
a
k

e
r 

/ 
B

a
c

k
g

ro
u

n
d

 P
a

p
e

rs
 L

is
t 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
(r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 C

o
u
n

c
il)

 
2

5
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

J
a

y
n

e
 P

ic
k
e

ri
n

g
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
4

0
0
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 A

ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

2
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
R

e
g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
  

M
a

rk
 C

o
x
, 

S
e

n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r,
 

P
o

llu
ti
o

n
 0

1
5

2
7
 8

8
1

3
9
2

 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 –

 
B

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 ,

 
P

u
b

lic
 R

e
a

lm
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
(M

a
y
 b

e
 a

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
C

o
u

n
c
il)

 

2
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

J
a

y
n

e
 P

ic
k
e

ri
n

g
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

 1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
4

0
0
 

B
ro

m
s
g
ro

v
e

 C
e

m
e
te

ry
 –

 
T

o
ile

ts
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
(M

a
y
 b

e
 a

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 
C

o
u

n
c
il)

 

2
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

G
u

y
 R

e
v
a

n
s
 (

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
) 

0
1

5
2

7
 6

4
2
5

2
 e

x
t 

3
2

9
2
 

  

A
s
s
is

ti
v
e

 T
e

c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 –

 F
u

tu
re

 
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 W
o

rc
e

s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 
T

e
le

c
a

re
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
 

2
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
n

g
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

J
u

d
it
h

 W
ill

is
, 

A
c
ti
n

g
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

0
1

5
2

7
 6

4
2
5

2
 e

x
t 

3
3

4
8
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

u
ra

l 
A

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

“E
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 S

it
e

” 
p

o
lic

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

2
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 D
e

p
u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

D
e

re
k
 A

lle
n

/A
m

a
n

d
a

 G
le

n
n

ie
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
2

6
9
 

Page 114



D
e

c
is

io
n

 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

 W
h

e
th

e
r 

it
 i
s

 a
 K

e
y
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

  

D
e

c
is

io
n

 T
a

k
e
r 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 D
e

ta
il
s

 o
f 

E
x

e
m

p
t 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 (

if
 

a
n

y
) 

D
a

te
 o

f 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 M
a
k

e
r 

/ 
B

a
c

k
g

ro
u

n
d

 P
a

p
e

rs
 L

is
t 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
2

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a

rd
 

S
h

e
e
n

a
 J

o
n
e

s
, 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 

0
1

5
2

7
 5

4
8
2

4
0
 

T
h
e

 D
o

d
fo

rd
 I
n

n
- 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
  
A

s
s
e

t 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 V

a
lu

e
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

2
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

J
a

y
n

e
 P

ic
k
e

ri
n

g
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

1
5

1
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
4

0
0
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

2
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
K

e
v
in

 D
ic

k
s
, 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
4

8
4
 

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 G

ra
n

t 
o
n

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

4
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 D
e

p
u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

D
e

re
k
 A

lle
n

/A
m

a
n

d
a

 G
le

n
n

ie
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
2

6
9
 

  

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 G

ra
n

t 
P

o
lic

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

4
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 D
e

p
u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

D
e

re
k
 A

lle
n

/A
m

a
n

d
a

 G
le

n
n

ie
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
  

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
2

6
9
 

P
la

y
in

g
 P

it
c
h

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

4
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
L

e
is

u
re

 
a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re
 

K
a

rl
 S

to
k
e

s
, 

P
a

rk
s
 a

n
d
 G

re
e

n
 

S
p

a
c
e

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
 

0
1

5
2

7
 6

4
2
5

2
 e

x
t 

3
3

7
7
 

 Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



- 
1
 -
 A
C
T
IO
N
 S
H
E
E
T
: 
B
R
O
M
S
G
R
O
V
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 1
5
th
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
1
3
 

 

IT
E
M
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
  

D
E
A
L
IN
G
 

 

D
A
T
E
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
  

B
Y
 
 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 

P
R
O
V
ID
E
D
 

A
N
D
 D
A
T
E
 

P
R
O
V
ID
E
D
 

It
e
m
 7
 –
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

T
a
s
k
 G
ro
u
p
 D
ra
ft
 F
in
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 T
a
s
k
 G
ro
u
p
’s
 d
ra
ft
 f
in
a
l 

re
p
o
rt
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

T
h
a
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
th
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 

a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

g
a
th
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 

 T
h

e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
ri

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 2
2
n
d
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
 

 

O
/S
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 2
6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

It
e
m
 6
 –
 H
a
rd
s
h
ip
 F
u
n
d
 

P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 &
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

(a
) 
C
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
 

ra
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 

e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
is
 g
ra
n
t.
 

(b
) 
A
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
L
iv
in
g
 F
u
n
d
 

to
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

a
ll 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

  T
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 

c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

  A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

    A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

   

It
e
m
 7
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 d
e
ta
ils
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
–
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

(a
) 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

a
n
 e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

  T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

  A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

  

  E
m
a
ile
d
 t
o
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

1
3
/5
/1
3
 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 117



- 
2
 -
 A
C
T
IO
N
 S
H
E
E
T
: 
B
R
O
M
S
G
R
O
V
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 1
5
th
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
1
3
 

C
e
m
e
te
ry
 T
o
ile
ts
. 

(b
) 
A
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 

£
2
0
0
,0
0
0
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

fo
rw
a
rd
 b
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

fo
r 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
it
h
 

B
D
H
T
, 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

u
ti
lis
e
d
. 

(c
) 
A
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 n
o
te
 t
o
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

s
h
o
rt
fa
ll 
in
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 l
o
w
e
r 

th
a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

re
v
e
n
u
e
 f
o
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
 

c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

     T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

      A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 E
m
a
ile
d
 t
o
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

0
3
/0
5
/1
3
 

O
/S
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 2
5
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 

It
e
m
 4
 –
 C
C
T
V
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 C
C
T
V
 

C
o
d
e
 o
f 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 

re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 C
o
d
e
 

o
f 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
t.
 

C
C
T
V
 a
n
d
 L
if
e
lin
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

 

It
e
m
 6
 –
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

G
ra
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

p
a
p
e
r 
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

G
ra
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

 (
c
) 
 E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 

e
a
rm

a
rk
e
d
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
p
a
re
 r
o
o
m
 

s
u
b
s
id
y
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

T
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 

Page 118



- 
3
 -
 A
C
T
IO
N
 S
H
E
E
T
: 
B
R
O
M
S
G
R
O
V
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 1
5
th
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
1
3
 

 

It
e
m
 8
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

3
 S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

(a
) 
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
a
y
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
e
q
u
a
te
d
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t.
 

(b
) 
T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
in
g
s
 a
s
 

T
.A
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 J
u
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 

S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 

 

O
/S
 f
ro
m
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 1
7
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 d
e
ta
ils
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 J
u
ly
 –
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
, 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

a
) 
T
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 

a
n
y
 c
o
s
t 
fo
r 
b
e
d
 

a
n
d
 b
re
a
k
fa
s
t 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 

a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 i
te
m
 i
n
 

fu
tu
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 

   D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

  

   T
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

R
e
p
o
rt
. 

  

        

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 W
ri
te
 O
ff
 o
f 

D
e
b
ts
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

2
 W

ri
te
 O
ff
 o
f 
D
e
b
ts
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 J
u
ly
 –
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

a
) 
In
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
w
ri
te
 o
ff
 

o
f 
S
u
n
d
ry
 D
e
b
to
rs
, 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

th
a
t 
a
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

d
e
b
to
rs
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 

re
p
o
rt
s
. 
 

b
) 
In
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
d
 

  D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

      D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 

  T
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

R
e
p
o
rt
. 

      A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

 

Page 119



- 
4
 -
 A
C
T
IO
N
 S
H
E
E
T
: 
B
R
O
M
S
G
R
O
V
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 1
5
th
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
1
3
 

d
e
b
t 
p
ro
fi
le
, 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 

d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 

y
e
a
rs
. 

a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 

Page 120



 

  1  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

2013-14 
 

All meetings commence at 6.00 p.m. in the Committee Room unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
This Work Programme consists of two sections: Items for future meetings 
(including updates) and Task Group Reviews. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
(a) To consider and agree the work programme and update it accordingly.  
 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
 

 
Date of Meeting 
 

 
Subject 
 

 
Other Information 

16th September 
2013 

Presentation - Update on Town Centre 
Regeneration and Public Realm 
Improvements 

Requested at meeting 
on 15th July 2013 

Quarter 1 Finance Monitoring Report  

Quarter 4 Sickness Absence 
Performance and Health Report 

 

Making Experiences Count Quarter 1 
Report 

 

Air Quality Task Group Draft Report  

Cabinet Work Programme  

WRS Joint Scrutiny Exercise – Verbal 
Update 

 

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

14th October 2013 Quarter 1 Sickness Absence 
Performance and Health Report 

 

Cabinet Response to the Youth Provision  
Task Group Report 

 

Planning Policy Task Group – 12 month 
Review 

 

Quarter 1 Write Off of Debts Report  

Cabinet Work Programme  

WRS Joint Scrutiny Exercise – Verbal 
Update 

 

Agenda Item 15

Page 121



 

  2  

 
Date of Meeting 
 

 
Subject 
 

 
Other Information 

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

18th November 
2013 

Update report on the North 
Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership 

 

Quarters 1 & 2 Summary of 
Environmental Enforcement Action 
Report 

 

WRS Joint Scrutiny Exercise – Verbal 
Update 

 

Cabinet Response to Air Quality Task 
Group Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme  

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

16th December 
2013 

Quarter 2 Finance Monitoring Report  

Quarter 2 Write Off of Debts Report  

Quarter 2 Sickness Absence 
Performance & Health Report 

 

Making Experiences Count Quarter 2 
Report 

 

WRS Joint Scrutiny – Verbal Update  

Cabinet Work Programme  

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

20th January 2014 Quarter 3 Summary of Environmental 
Enforcement Action Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme   

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

24th February 2014 Quarter 3 Sickness Absence 
Performance & Health Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme  

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Page 122



 

  3  

 
Date of Meeting 
 

 
Subject 
 

 
Other Information 

Work Programme   

24th March 2014 WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Quarter 3 Finance Monitoring Report  

Quarter 3 Write Off of Debts Report  

Making Experiences Count Quarter 3 
Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme   

Action List  

Work Programme   

14th April 2014  Quarter 4 Summary of Environmental 
Enforcement Action Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme   

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

 

Page 123



 

  4  

 
Scrutiny of Crime & Disorder Partnership Meeting Dates 
 
18th November 2013 
 
Provisional Informal Budget Briefings 5.30 p.m. (Private) 
 
2nd December 2013 
7th January 2014 
 
Reports not allocated 
 
Annual Review of Call In 
Countywide Sustainable Community Strategy – this is a ten year strategy and not 
due to be reviewed until 2014  
 
 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TASK GROUP/INQUIRY REVIEWS 2013-14 
 

 
Task Group 

 
Date of Review 

 

Planning Policy Task Group 
 

September 2013 

Youth Provision Task Group September 2014 

Air Quality Task Group October 2014 

 

Page 124


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 15th July 2013
	5 Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal - Car Parking Charges
	20130729 Car Parking CBateman.docx
	Copy of AltrinchamCarParkusagefigurestoendofMarch2013
	20130729 Car Parking CBateman Comments

	6 Making Experiences Count Quarter 1 Report
	Making Experiences Count - report to members Q1 2013-14 BDC

	7 Quarter 1 Finance Monitoring Report
	qtr1reportAppendix1EarmarkedReservesSchedule
	Qtr1reportAppendix2Savingsanalysisanddelivery1314

	8 Quarter 4 Sickness Absence and Performance Health Report
	9 Air Quality Task Group Draft Final Report
	DRAFT Final Report 20130903

	10 Artrix Outreach Work Task Group Report
	13 Cabinet Work Programme 1st October to 31st January 2014
	14 Action List
	15 Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme

